HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
BOARD MEETING
AGENDA
Hamilton High School Library
Wednesday, January 22, 2020

5:30 p.m, Public session for purposes of opening the meeting only.
5:30 p.m. Closed session to discuss closed session items listed below.
6:00 p.m. Reconvene to open session no later than 6:30 p.m.

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

OPENING BUSINESS:
a. Calltoorder and roll call

Gabriel Leal, President Hubert “Wendall” Lower, Clerk Rod Boone
Genaro Reyes Ray Odom

IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION ITEMS:

PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: Public comment will be heard on any closed session items. The board
may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and 15 minutes per item.

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: To consider qualified matters.

a. Government Code Section 54957 (b), Personnel Issue. To consider the employment, evaluation, reassignment,
resignation, dismissal, or discipline of a classified and certificated employees.

b. Government Code Section 54957.6, Labor Negotiations. To confer with the District’s Labor Negotiator,
Superintendent Jeremy Powell regarding HTA and CSEA negotiations.

c. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Existing litigation. Name of case: Crews v. Hamilton Unified
School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 15Cv01394,

d. Government Code Section 54956.9, Subdivision (a), Pending litigation. Name of case: Goodwin v. Hamilton
Unified School District, Glenn County Superior Court, Case No. 19CV02117

e. Conference with Real Property Negotiators. Property: Westermann property north of Hamilton High School,
approximately located at 500 Sixth Street, Hamilton City, CA 95951 (APN: 032-230-015-000). Agency
Negotiator: Jeremy Powell, Superintendent; Matt Juhl-Darlington, Attorney for District. Negotiating Parties:
Westermann Family and Hamilton Unified School District. Under negotiation: Price and terms of payment.

Report out action taken in closed session.

PUBLIC SESSION/FLAG SALUTE:

ADOPT THE AGENDA: (M)

ADJOURN TO ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
a. Board President: Elect Board President for the 2020 year
b. Board Clerk: Elect Board Clerk for the 2020 year

COMMUNICATIONS/REPORTS:
a. Board Member Comments/Reports.
b. ASB President and Student Council President Reports
i. Hamilton High School, Giovanni Martinez
ii. Hamilton Elementary School, Ella Mendez
c. District Reports {written)
i. Technology Report by Frank James & Derek Hawley (page 1)
ii. Nutrition Services Report by Sean Montgomery (page 3)
iii. Operations Report by Alan Joksch (page 5)



Principal and Dean of Student Reports

i
ii.
iii.
iv.

Kathy Thomas, Hamilton Elementary School Principal
Maria Reyes, District Dean of Students

Cris Oseguera, Hamilton High School Principal

Sylvia Robles, Adult School (page 7)

e. Chief Business Official Report by Kristen Hamman {page 9)
f.  Superintendent Report by Jeremy Powell (page 11)

9.0 PRESENTATIONS:
a. Dual Immersion by Maggie Sawyer {page 15)

10.0 CORRESPONDENCE:
a. None

11.0 INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:
a. Form 700 — annual statement of Economic Interests -- see handout (page 25)
b. HUSD Enrollment History for 5 years {page 35)
¢. Bond Satus (Fund 21) Update (page 37-39)
d. HUSD Audit SAS Letter (page 41)

12.0 DISCUSSION ITEMS:
a. PlaceWorks Additional Cost Proposal (page 45)
HUSD Audit Report June 30, 2019 (page 47)
Recommendation from Superintendent regarding 2018-19 Bond Transfer
GCOE Differentiated Assistance Process {page 133)
HHS Site Expansion Permitting Status Update — Mike Cannon (page 137)
CSBA Policy Guide Sheet (for below first readings) (page 139)
i. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 0460: Local Control and Accountability Plan (page 143)
ii. Board Policy 0520: Intervention for Underpeforming Schools (New Policy) (page 159)
ii. Board Policy 0520.1: Comprehensive and Targeted Support and Improvement (New Policy) (page 162)
iv. Board Policy 1431: Waivers (page 166)
v. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3515: Campus Security (page 170)
vi. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4116: Probationary/Permanent Status (page 177)
1. Option 1 {page 178)
2. Option 2 {page 178)
vii. Board Policies 4119.22, 4219.22, 4319.22: Dress and Grooming (page 185)
viii. Board Policy 4216: Probationary/Permanent Status (page 187)
ix. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 4218: Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action {page 189)
x. Board Policy 5131: Conduct (page 200)
xi. Board Policy 5131.8: Mobile Communicatinon Devices (New Policy) (page 206)
xii. Board Policy 5132: Dress and Grooming (page 210)
xiii. Administrative Regulation 5141.26: Tuberculosis Testing (page 214)
xiv. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 5142: Safety (page 218)
xv. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 7140: Architectural and Engineering Services (page 230)
xvi. Board Bylaw 9323: Meeting Conduct (page 236)

~oaooT

13.0 PUBLIC COMMENT: Public comment on any item of interest to the public that is within the Board’s jurisdiction will be
heard (agenda and non-agenda items). The Board may limit comments to no more than three minutes per speaker and
15 minutes per topic. Public comment will also be allowed on each specific action item prior to board action thereon.

14.0 ACTION ITEMS:
a. Approve PlaceWorks Additional Cost Proposal (page 45)
b. Accept HUSD Audit Report June 30, 2019 (page 47)
c. Give Direction to Superintendent regarding 2018-19 Bond Transfer



15.0 CONSENT AGENDA: Items in the consent agenda are considered routine and are acted upon by the Board in one
motion. There is no discussion of these items prior to the Board vote and unless a member of the Board, staff, or public
request specific items be discussed and/or removed from the consent agenda. Each item on the consent agenda
approved by the Board shall be deemed to have been considered in full and adopted as recommended.

a. Minutes for regular Board Meeting on December 11, 2019 (page 243-254)

b. Certificated and Classified Seniority Lists {(pages 255-257)

c. Approve 2018-19 School Accountability Report Cards (SARC): Hamilton High School, Ella Barkely High School,
Hamilton Elementary School and Hamilton Community Day School. {pages 259-310)

HES SSC Agenda December 10, 2019 {page 311)
HES SSC Minutes December 10, 2019 (page 313)
HES SSC Agenda January 14, 2020 (page 315)
HES Signed Safety Plan 2018-19 (page 317)
HHS Sports Boosters Minutes December 2, 2019 (page 323)
Warrants and Expenditures. (page 325)
Interdistrict Transfers (new only; elementary students reapply annually).
i. Out
1. Hamilton Elementary School
a. Kx1(for 2020-21 school year)
2. Hamilton High School
a. none

ST Tm oA

1. Hamilton Elementary School
a. none
2. Hamilton High School
a. none
k. Personnel Actions as Presented:
i. New hires:
Karen Tweedt-Ordaz Job Re-Entry/Job Coach Instructor
(Short-Term/Temporary)

ii. Resignations/Retirement: None

16.0 ADJOURNMENT:

Adult Ed






HUSD Technology Report
Board Meeting on January 22, 2020
Frank James, Director of Technology

Derek Hawley, Information Systems Technician

Completed and in Progress Tasks — January 2020

1.

Caching Server: Caching Server has been configured and deployed within the HUSD network.
This device will help keep our network stable and limit bandwidth spikes which causes the
internet to slow down. The Caching Server will also limit possible network lag during high usage
times.

CNIPS reporting: CNIPS data migration has been properly mapped and we are exploring a tool to
automate the export and upload process (from NutriKids to CNIPS). We receive nutrition funding
with this report.

Internet for all: We are exploring a Comcast program that helps provide low cost internet for
families of students. Families that qualify for Free and Reduced lunches would be able to get
internet in their homes for roughly $10 a month.

VolP Project: We are exploring bringing our VolP services in house. The proposal we are putting
together has the possibility to have significant savings to the District in 20-21 and beyond.
Laserfiche renewal: We are in the process of renewing our Laserfiche license and support. We
are putting together a proposal that would move Laserfiche our servers to the cloud (Saa$). This

could reduce by half our license and support cost.






HUSD Food Service Report
Board Meeting on January 22, 2020

Sean Montgomery, Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare

Elementary School

We served 1,968 breakfasts in December.

® Free .cveeriecviinnnns 1,473
e Reduced................. 407
e Full Price......cccuvvueen 88

o Free...oovevieeeennn. 3,522

e Reduced........c...cuu.. 1,333

e Full Price....cccouunnnns 349
High School

We served 1,692 breakfasts in December.

e Free ....coocciiiivinnnns 889
e Reduced........ccue.. 429
e Full Price.....cccoun...... 374

O Free...iciiviiiciiiiinnns 659
e Reduced................. 359
e Full Price................. 172

We completed HUSD'’s application verification-process for the 2019-20 school year.

We are in the process of joining a new commodity co-op (the State Co-op) that should better serve a
district of our size.






HUSD Maintenance Report
Board Meeting on December 11, 2019

Alan Joksch, Director of Maintenance and Transportation

Happy New Year!

Fall Sports
1. We have hosted 9 home basketball games and transported teams to 11 away games.
2. We have hosted 6 home soccer games and had 4 away.
3. The elementary girls’ basketball has ended and the boys will begin on Jan 15". We will use vans
for most of their games.

Facilities

1. The HVAC project has been completed. The last set of units were installed on January 9™. The
entire project went smoothly and the weather cooperated so they were finished ahead of
schedule. We still have a few other issues with some older units, but they did not fall into this
project.

2. New parking lot lighting was installed at Ella Barkley. Two LED fixtures have replaced the old
High-Pressure lights that were on the poles. Again, there are other lighting issues there, but that
is another project.

3. Over the holiday break the campuses were cleaned and the Maintenance Shop front lot was
organized.

Maintenance Tickets
1. This month, we opened 20 new tickets and closed 6. Many of the other open tickets have been
addressed but were not closed by the time of this report.






The Robles Report-Adult Education
Board Meeting on January 22, 2020
Silvia Robles, Director of Adult Education

Guadalupe Mercado, Administrative Technician

Completed and in Progress Tasks — January, 2020

1. Enrollment and students served to date for all programs:

e (Citizenship 12
e Computer Literacy 9
e ESL 19
e Floral Design 0
e Forklift Training 38
e High School Diploma 22
e Intensive ELD/Childcare Provider-------------- 0
e Job Reentry-Starts Spring 2020 -----------—---- 0
TOTAL: 100

2. Recruitment/Outreach at Emergency Food Distribution in Hamilton January 18, 2020.

3. Monthly flyers are being distributed to nonprofit organizations and partners in an ongoing effort to
help support our Adult School.

4. Spring 2020 Class Schedules were mailed to Hamilton City Residents. They are also available at the
Adult School, High School and on our website.

Upcoming Events and Reporting Due:

1. Second Quarter Data Integrity Report for Oct, Nov, and Dec., Due January 31, 2020.
2. Hamilton Adult Ed Agency’s Implementation Training Due January 31, 2020.

3. Hamilton Adult Ed Agency’s Technology Plan Due January 31, 2020.






{evo‘esr) o

06C°LTS'Y S

- S
L69'SHS S
vo'oze  $
Iy S
TEL'8ET S
SvT/8 S
€188 S
o'y $
91987 §
¥86'816 S
6CL76S S
GCs'ZeE9'T §

LP2'S80Y S

? s
0L6°CE S
€LgT0T S
0ET'ELT S
v£9°9LL'E S

aleq o] Jeaj
610¢2-810¢

(ot9'9rz)

N

EES'TEY'R
918'099
000°00¢
76€90€
667201
005°50¢
61868
005’6
895°€PT
668°06€
G8Y'V68'T
GGSOVT T
00.'18V'¢

B2 BV Vo L Vo SRRV o R VR T2 I Vo SR Vs SV N Vs N V3

€C6'78€'8
TL6'Lt
00S's€
v6L'ETS
200'09¢
§6T8YSL

v N n

198png pasinay
wiIau| 3sai4
610¢-810¢C

I0T°/8 &

EvS'85C'T S

79991 $ (zvb'tL9) S
2 AWA RIS 8919876 S
- S €18'€06 S

2€s/8T S (A4 40 2NN
189°09T S 6/V'00E S
6€5°6€ S 660°/L S
09€'stT S osv'scz S
S69°00T S S69°00T S
Ev8'vl S 000CT )
R6V'8T S ESV'8TT S
£98'9T7 § A2 WA 22N
ev0'6Z6 S LTG'S86T S
6/8'€8S S 9€ST6I'T S
£02°009'T S ors‘oLv’'s S
908cTC’y S 970's19'8 S
= S - S

STy'T9 S L1561 S
892901 § €Iv'ege S
QET9TT S 6956LC S
£86'676'c S LOYV'EL8L S
198png pasinay

2leq o] Jeo) wialuj 1s14
0Z0Z-6102 020Z-6T02

020Z/€1/T J0 Sy

1oday paeog 0zoz Adenuer
Pa1211353Y pue Pa1dLIS3IUN - pung [eJdUID
1914351Q [00YIS P3LIuN Uol|IweH

'leg pun4 "pu3 pajdafold
(slen1oy paupneun 61-8102) ‘jeg pun4 ‘Sag
pung ui (9sealdaq) asealau| 1aN

sainjipuadxd jeyol

081nQ 19410

Aejing jende)

sainyupuadx3 SuizesadQ 419410
siieday/saseay/siuay

SSIMIN 43410 IV

Jdueinsu| J13Y10
sdiysiaquia|p pue sang
S9JU313JU0)) pue [dned|
salrddng pue s)oog

sujauag sahkojdwy

Salip|eS [3UU0SIdd palyIsse))
SalIe|eS [SUU0SIad PaledIHII)
sainjpuadx3

S9NUIAY je10]
$924n0S Suidueuly J3y10
anudAIY 18207 4134310
9NuaAlY 31e1S 13Y10
3NUAIY |eI9pI4 JBYIQ ||V

$321Nn0S 4477
S9NUdAIY



10



HUSD Superintendent Report
Board Meeting on January 22, 2020

Jeremy Powell, Ed. D.

It is amazing how quickly nearly one-half of the school year can fly by! During our Winter Break, many
projects around the district have been completed (both large and small). Our Prop 39 AC Project
completed the final phase the week before school started, the Boys and Girls Club updated their
Clubhouse, and the maintenance staff was able to scrub classrooms.

Target Goals created by District Cabinet:

e Focus on Dual Immersion-Bilingual/Biliterate/Bicultural
e All students at Standard and Achievement Gap Closed
¢ Graduates who are College and Career Ready

District Highlights for December & January:

e California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) data was released in late
December (see attached). As a district, we had some strong areas of growth, but continued to
lag behind state expectations in several identified areas (Students with Disabilities-English,
Math, and Suspension rate were all in the Red).

e On Friday, December 13 during our Quarterly Cabinet Meeting, we reviewed parent input
strategies from several districts and created a structure for seeking parent input (see Handout
Survey).

e District Leadership met several times throughout the Winter Break to discuss options to reduce
expenditures both for this school year and next school year. Many of these ideas will be
presented on January 27 to the Superintendent Budget Advisory Committee Meeting. We are
hoping to have representatives from the district, HTA, CSEA, and board members present.

Upcoming Events:
@ 1/20: No School MLK Jr. Holiday
e 1/22: HUSD Board Meeting
e 1/27: Superintendent Budget Advisory Committee

Meeting @ 3:30 in the HHS Library

2/10: No School-Lincoln’s Birthday
2/17: No School- Presidents Day
3/1-3/3: SSDA Annual Conference in Sacramento

Save the Date
Small School Districts’ Association
37th Annual Conference & Trade Show
March 1-3, 2020

Sunday, March 1, 2020 Heiwiay, Mard) 3, 2020 Tueeday. Matel 3, 1020
P Confoas s Sexshme o 300 Wollahnps .+ Exgoold Speakes
= Tradle Show = IKerete Speakens o Woshslhops
«  Roecaption & tixanol v o Bloderup Award Prescntslicin
s « Trade Siow & Raime
»  Rodeption & Karaalie findit

Setting For
The Excellence
Vision

11



12




2018-2019 Hamilton Unified Dashboard Results

(Information from: https://www.caschooldashboard.org/)

HAMILTON UNIFIED

Academic Performance

View Student Assessment Results and other aspects of school

performance.

LEARN MORE
English Language Arts

T state

AN

Orange

30 points below standard
Declined 4.5 Points ®

EQUITY REPORT
Number of Student Groups in Each Color
- — L
0 5 0 0 0

Red QOrange  Yeilow  Green  Blue

View More Details <

HAMILTON UNIFIED

LEARN MORE
Mathematics

Al Students | INEIG

AN

Orange

81.5 points below standard
Declined 3.3 Points ®

EQUITY REPORT
Number of Student Groups 1n Each Color
[ ] _—
1 4 0 0 [

Red Orange  VYellow  Green  8lue

View More Details &

LEARN MORE
English Learner Progress

All Stidents. ISES

57.4% making progress
towards English language
proficiency

Number of EL Students: 115

Progress Levels

Very High = 63% or hugher
High = 55% to iess than 55%
Medium = 45% to l2ss than 55%
Low = 35% to less than 45%
Very Low = Less than 35%

View Mare Details 9

HAMILTON UNIFIED

LEARN MORE
College/Career

All Students GG

£\

Yellow

40.4% prepared

Maintained -1.6%

EQUITY REPORT
Number of Student Groups in Each Color
- 0 LW |
0 0 2 0 0

Red Orange VYellow Green 3lue

View More Details

Academic Engagement

See information that shows how well schools are engaging students

in their learning.

LEARN MORE
Graduation Rate

LEARN MORE
Chronic Absenteeism

[ nnstents RS FEE) e

' d N
1N 1N
Yellow Yellow

6% chronically absent 92,1% graduated

Maintained 0.2% Declined 2.1% ®

EQUITY REPORT
Number of Student Groups in Each Color

EQUITY REPORT
Number of Student Groups i Each Color

LB O L] -
0 1 3 1 0 0 0 2 0 0
Red  Orange  Yellow  Green  Blue Red  Orange  Yellow  Green  Blue

View Mote Details 3 View More Details 9

Conditions & Climate

View data related to how well schools are providing a healthy, safe

and welcoming environment.

LEARN MORE
Suspension Rate

Green
3.5% suspended at least

once

Declined 1% ®

EQUITY REPORT
Number of Student Groups in Each Color
- e -
1 0 2 3 0

Red  Qrange  Yellow  Green  Blue

View Mote Details 3

i3






HUSD Dual Immersion Program
Board Meeting on January 22, 2020
Presented by Maggie Sawyer, Assistant Principal/ELD Coordinator

Mission
Develop bilingual/biliterate students that are high achieving in academics, are college, career,

globally ready, and sociocultural competence.

Goals
e Develop a high level of proficiency in understanding, speaking, reading, and writing in
both English and Spanish.
e Prepare students to perform at or above grade level in both languages.
Foster positive attitudes toward other languages and cultures.
® Promote self-esteem and leadership skills.

Benefits
e High academic achievement
e Competitive advantage
® Brain power (prolongs the onset of dementia and Alzheimer’s)

Seal of Biliteracy Pathway

Elementary School Middle School
“Biliteracy Award” “Biliteracy Attainment Award”
End of 3rd & 5th Grade End of 8th Grade

High School
Seal of Biliteracy
End of 12th Grade

15



16

Enrollment

Grade Maestra Students
Kindergarten Aimee Curiel 24
1st Maria Alvarez 24
2nd Maria Esquivel 22
TOTAL 70

Cultural Events

e Diade laIndependencia

Dia de los Muertos




Language Allocation & Curriculum Matrix
Currently in K-2, next year we will expand to 3rd grade with the goal of TK-12 district wide.

Gr. Time Spanish Time English
Reading/ Spanish Language Arts English Language Development (ELD) or
K 90% Math 10% | Literacy Extension
285 min | Social Science 30 min | Music
Science
PE
Reading/Spanish Language Arts English Language Development (ELD) or
1 90% Math 10% Literacy Extension
285 min | Social Science 30 min | Music
Science
PE
Reading/Spanish Language Arts English Language Development
2 80% Math 20% | (ELD) or Literacy Extension
255 min | Social Science 60 min | Music
Science
PE
Future Classes
Reading/Spanish Language Arts Reading/English Language Arts
3 70% Math 30% | English Language Development
220 min | Social Science 95 min | (ELD) or Literacy Extension
Science Music
PE
Reading/Spanish Language Arts Reading/English Language Arts
4 60% Math 40% | English Language Development
190 min | Social Science 130 | (ELD) or Literacy Extension
Science min Music
PE
Reading/Spanish Language Arts Reading/English Language Arts
5 50% Math 50% | English Language Development
160 min | Science 160 (ELD) or Literacy Extension
min Social Science
Music
PE
6-8* Two courses in Spanish Six courses in English
25% 75%
9- Two courses in Spanish Two courses in English
12* 25% 75%

*In order to have a Dual Immersion program in Middle School and High School, a minimum of two classes need to

be in Spanish.

17



18

Professional Development

Dr. Claudia Rodriguez-Mojica

interactions)

Date Training Participants
March 23, | Foundations of Bilingual Education & Bilingualism TK-8 All staff (AM)
2018
Bilingual Methods: An Introduction K-5 BCLAD (PM)
August Dual Language Implementation Workshop V. Ortiz, M. Alvarez, M.
6&7, Sawyer
2018
Sept. 21, | Dual Language Support Session (AM) Ortiz & Alvarez
2018
School-wide commitment to bilingualism (PM) TK - 8 All staff
Oct. 29, Dual Language Support Ortiz & Alvarez
2018
Nov. 7, Dual Language Support and Coaching Session Ortiz & Alvarez
2018
Feb. 26, Dual Immersion Parent Workshop K and 1st grade parents
2019
March 28, | Dual Language Support and Coaching Session Ortiz & Alvarez
2019
March 29, | School-wide commitment to bilingualism (AM) TK-8 All staff
2019
Dual Language Support Session (PM) BCLAD Teachers
May 9, Dual Language Support Session Ortiz, Alvarez, & M.
2019 Esquivel
Aug. 6-7, | Dual Language Implementation A.Curiel, Alvarez, & M.
2019 Esquivel
Sept. 11, | All day Curiel, Alvarez,
2019 Coaching and Observation Session (focus on student | G.Godinez, E. Peery, &

M. Llamas




Upcoming dates with Dr. Claudia Rodriguez-Mojica:

Date Training Participants
Jan. 24, Dual Language Support Session (AM) Curiel, Alvarez, Esquivel
2020
Engaging students in sustained interactions with TK-8 All staff
teacher and peers (PM)
March 19, | All day Curiel, Alvarez,
2020 Coaching & Observation Session (focus on student G.Godinez, E. Peery, &
interactions) M. Llamas

CIELO - Community and Instruction for Expanding English Learners’ Opportunities

The Center for Bilingual/Multicultural Studies from CSU, Chico’s School of Education acquired a
5 year $2.9 million grant funded by the United States Department of Education. Their goal is to
improve instructional practices of Dual Language Immersion Programs as they specifically serve

English Learners. HES teachers have had the opportunity to participate in the CIELO summer

institute for the last two years and will continue to be involved in future trainings and lesson

studies as they are offered.

Date Training Participants
June 11- CIELO Summer Institute provided PD focussing on Spanish - M. Sawyer, V.
15, 2018 | increasing Spanish vocabulary in Math and Science for TK- | Ortiz, M. Alvarez, M.
2nd grade DI teachers and ELD activities for English Esquivel, M. Hernandez
teachers. Two lesson studies throughout the English - N. Heffley
academic year.
June 10-14, | CIELO Summer Institute provided PD focussing on Spanish - M. Hernandez,
2019 increasing Spanish vocabulary in Math and Science for L. Cox, M. Llamas, & M.
3rd-6th grade DI teachers and ELD activities for English Sawyer
teachers. Two lesson studies throughout the
academic year.

Upcoming CIELO dates: TBD

California Association for Bilingual Educators (CABE)

Date

Training

Participants

March 2018

CABE Annual Conference

Thomas, Sawyer, R.

19



20

Many various breakout sessions offered for different
stakeholders. A small team from HUSD’s Spanish
Language committee attended to gather details for
future DI program implementation.

Sanchez, G. Reyes, & L.
Garcia

April 2019

CABE Annual Conference

Sawyer and Dr. Claudia Rodriguez-Mojica presented a
break out session sharing the HUSD’s Di program and
vision of a school-wide commitment to bilingualism
with educators throughout the state.

Sawyer and Alvarez

Upcoming CABE dates:

April 2020

CABE Annual Conference -
CIELO grant to pay for four participants that attended
the summer institute in 2019

M. Hernandez, L. Cox, M.
Liamas, M. Sawyer

Estrellitas - Accelerated Beginning Spanish Reading

Date Training Participants
July 29, 2019 Curiel, Alvarez, Esquivel,
E ‘ I Sawyer
Arealetaied Brginning Spanish Read Iné
Training to implement Estrellita Curriculum in the dual
immersion classroom. Estrellita is a multisensory
phonics program that provides accelerated,
systematic, explicit phonics instruction to decode in
Spanish.
Book Study
Date Training Participants




—

A.Curiel, M, Alvarez, M.
Esquivel, M. Hernandez, L.
Cox, M. Llamas, S.
Dickerson, and M. Sawyer

On going

Teaching for Biliteracy:
Strengthening Bridges between Languages by
Karen Beeman and Cheryl Urow. The authors
introduce the concept of the Bridge to transfer
language and academic content. Teachers meet
once a month to discuss the book, focusing on
classroom and school wide applications.

Spanish Curriculum

Implementation | Grades Number of | Content Area

Year students

Year1 Kand 1st 48 Mathematics

2018-1019 Early Learning Mathematics ( Kit del profesor - PDF
Aprendizaje Temprano de las Matematicas) 24
students

Everyday Mathematics 4th Edition, Grade 1, 24
students

Benchmark Adelante (Spanish Language Arts)
K-1 Includes 8 year adoption
Student consumables & digital access, 48 students

Social Science
K-1, 48 students

Year 2 2nd grade | 24 Everyday Math 4th Ed, Grade 2, 24 students
students Kindergarten 24 students

2019-2020
Benchmark Adelante (Spanish Language Arts)
Grade 2 only Includes 8 year subscription
Student consumables & digital access.

Social Science
K, 1st, & 2nd grade, 72 students




22

Future Curriculum Needs:

Implementation | Grades Number of | Content Area
Year students
Year 3 3rd 24 e Everyday Math 4th Ed - 3rd grade
e Benchmark Adelante (Spanish)
2020-2021 e Science
e Social Studies
Year 4 4th 24 e Everyday Math 4th Ed - 4th grade
e Benchmark Adelante (Spanish)
2021-2022 e Science
e Social Studies
Year 5 5th 24 e Everyday Math 4th Ed - 5th grade
e Benchmark Advance (Spanish)
2022-2023 ® Science

Spanish Rich Environment
e Spanish classroom environment
Spanish library books
Classroom/School Wide expectations posters
Primary playground

Special events always bilingual (Recognition awards, assemblies, etc.)

Program Self-Assessment - CAL Guiding Principles for Dual Language Education




GUIDING

PRINCIPLES FOR

DUAL LANGUAGE
EDUCATION

CALEER ) R st

Steering committee met January - May 2019 and conducted a program self-assessment using
the Center for Applied Linguistics’ (CAL) Guiding Principles for Dual Language Education. The
team identified areas of strengths as well as areas to improve then developed action steps.
These action steps were shared at the DELAC, ELAC, and parent breakfast for community input.
These are the identified areas we will be focusing on to improve our program.

Strand 1: Program Structure
® Principle 1.D - Appropriate grade-level academic expectations are clearly identified in
the program design.
® Principle 2.B -The program promotes linguistic equity.

Strand 2: Curriculum
® Principle 1.A - There is a curriculum development and implementation plan.
® Principle 1.E - The curricufum is coordinated within and across grade levels.

Strand 3: Instruction
e Principle 1.F - Teachers who provide support services (e.g., special education, gifted
education, ESL) and specials (e.g., art, music) align their instruction with the dual
language model.
@ Principle 3.B - Teachers create meaningful opportunities for sustained language use.

Strand 4: Assessment and Accountability
e Principle 1.D - Staff are provided ongoing professional development opportunities in
assessment and accountability.
e Principle 2.A - Student assessment is aligned with program goals, instructional
objectives, and language and literacy standards for both languages of instruction.

23



24

Strand 5: Staff Quality and Professional Development
e Principle 1.A - There is a teacher recruitment and retention plan that is aligned with
program goals and long-term needs.
e Principle 2.B - Approaches to professional development respect individual interests and
learning styles and foster autonomy and ownership of the learning process.

Strand 6: Family and Community
e Principle 2.A - The program incorporates ongoing learning activities that are designed to
help families understand, support, and advocate for the program.
@ Principle 2.E - The program partners with families to promote home-school connections.

Strand 7: Support and Resources
e Principle 1.B - Instructional and support staff have adequate knowledge to support and

lead the program.
e Principle 2.A - The dual language program has equitable access to school, district, and

state resources.



Secretary/President

Conflict of Interest Code of the
Hamilton Unified School District

The provisions of 2 CCR 18730 and any amendments to it adopted by the Fair Political Practices
Commission, together with the attached Appendix specifying designated positions and disclosure
categories, are incorporated by reference and shall constitute the district's conflict of interest

code.

Governing Board members and designated employees shall file a Statement of Economic
Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories listed in the attached Appendix.
The Statement of Economic Interest shall be filed with the district's filing officer and/or, if so
required, with the district's code reviewing body. The district's filing officer shall make the

statements available for public review and inspection.

APPENDIX
Disclosure Categories
1. Category 1: A person designated Category 1 shall disclose:

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within
two miles of district boundaries, or of any land owned or used by the district.

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are engaged in the
acquisition or disposal of real property within the district, are contractors or subcontractors
which are or have been within the past two years engaged in work or services of the type used by
the district, or manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by

the district,
2, Category 2: A person designated Category 2 shall disclose:

a. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which are contractors or
subcontractors engaged in work or services of the type used by the department which the
designated person manages or directs.

b. Investments or business positions in or income from sources which manufacture or sell
supplies, books, machinery, or equipment of the type used by the department which the
designated person manages or directs. For the purposes of this category, a principal's
department is his/her entire school.

25



26

3. Full Disclosure: Because it has been determined that the district's Board members
and/or Superintendent "manage public investments," they and other persons designated for "full
disclosure" shall disclose, in accordance with Government Code 87200:

a. Interests in real property located entirely or partly within district boundaries, or within
two miles of district boundaries, or of any land owned or used by the district.

b. Investments, business positions, and sources of income, including gifts, loans, and travel
payments.

Designated Positions

Designated Position Disclosure Category

Govemning Board Members

District Superintendent/Principal Alternative Education
Chief Business Official

District Accounts Clerk

Principal, Hamilton High School

Principal, Hamilton Elementary School

Assistant Principal, Hamilton Elementary School
Director of Maintenance, Operations and Transportation
Dean of Students

Director of Technology

Director of Nutrition and Student Welfare

Activities Director

P D PO BRI R RO MO N — e

Disclosures for Consultants

Consultants are designated employees who must disclose financial interests as determined on a
case-by-case basis by the Superintendent or designee. The Superintendent or desi gnee's written
determination shall include a description of the consultant's duties and a statement of the extent
of disclosure requirements based upon that description. All such determinations are public
records and shall be retained for public inspection along with this conflict of interest code.

A consultant is an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, makes a governmental
decision whether to: (2 CCR 18701)

1. Approve a rate, rule, or regulation
28 Adopt or enforce a law

B Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke a permit, license, application, certificate, approval, order,
or similar authonzation or entitlement



4, Authorize the district to enter into, modify, or renew a contract that requires district

approval

5. Grant district approval (o a contract that requires district approval and in which the
district is a party, or to the specifications for such a contract

6. Grant district approval to a plan, design, reporl, study, or similar jtem
. Adopt or grant district approval of district policies, standards, or guidelines

A consultant is also an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the district, serves in a staff
capacity with the district and in that capacity participates in making a governmental decisjon as
defined in 2 CCR 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the
district that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a position specified in the
district's conflict of interest code. (2 CCR 18701)

Regulation HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
approved: September 26, 2018 Hamilton City, California

27



28

Board Bylaws BB 9270(a)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

The Governing Board desires to maintain the highest ethical standards and help ensure that
decisions are made in the best interest of the district and the public. In accordance with law,
Board members and designated employees shall disclose any conflict of interest and, as
necessary, shall abstain from participating in the decision.

fcf 9003 - Governance Standards)

The Board shall adopt a resolution that specifies the terms of the district's conflict of interest
code, the district's designated positions, and the disclosure categories required for each position.

Upon direction by the code reviewing body, the Board shall review the district's conflict of
interest code and submit any changes to the code reviewing body.

When a change in the district's conflict of interest code is necessitated due to changed
circumstances, such as the creation of new designated positions, changes to the duties assigned to
existing positions, amendments, or revisions, the amended code shall be submitted to the code
reviewing body within 90 days. (Government Code 87306)

When reviewing and preparing the district's conflict of interest code, the Superintendent or
designee shall provide officers, employees, consultants, and members of the community
adequate notice and a fair opportunity to present their views. (Government Code 87311)

(cf: 9320 - Meetings and Notices)

Board members and designated employees shall annually file a Statement of Economic
Interest/Form 700 in accordance with the disclosure categories specified in the district's conflict
of interest code. A Board member who leaves office or a designated employee who leaves
district employment shall, within 30 days, file a revised statement covering the period of time
between the closing date of the last statement and the date of leaving office or district
employment. (Government Code 87302, 87500)

(cff 4117.2/4217 2/4317.2 - Resignation)
(cf 9222 - Resignation)

Conflict of Interest under the Political Reform Act

A Board member or designated employee shall not make, participate in making, or in any way
use or attempt to use his‘her official position to influence a governmental decision in which
he/she knows or has reason to know that he/she has a disqualifying conflict of interest. A
conflict of interest exists if the decision will have a "reasonably foreseeable material financial
effect" on one or more of the Board member's or designated employee's "economic



BB 9270(b)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

interests," unless the effect is indistinguishable from the effect on the public generally or the
Board member's or designated employee's participation is legally required. (Government Code
87100, 87101, 87103; 2 CCR 18700-18709) -

A Board member or designated employee makes a governmental decision when, acting within
the authority of his/her office or position, he/she votes on a matter, appoints a person, obligates
or commits the district to any course of action, or enters into any contractual agreement on behalf

of the district. (2 CCR 18702.1)

A Board member who has a disqualifying conflict of interest on an agenda item that will be
heard in an open mecting of the Board shall abstain from voting on the matter. He/she may
remain on the dais, but his/her presence shall not be counted towards achieving a quorum for that
matter. A Board member with a disqualifying conflict of interest shall not be present during a
closed session meeting of the Board when the decision is considered and shall not obtain or
review a recording or any other nonpublic information regarding the issue. (2 CCR 18702.1)

Additional Requirements for Boards that Manage Public Investments

A Board member who manages public investments pursuant to Government Code 87200 and
who has a financial interest in a decision shall, upon identifying a conflict or potential conflict of
interest and immediately prior to the consideration of the matter, do all of the following:
(Government Code 87105; 2 CCR 18702.5)

L. Publicly identify each financial interest that gives rise to the conflict or potential conflict
of interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, except that disclosure of the
exact street address of a residence is not required.

2, Recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the matter, or otherwise acting in
violation of Government Code 87100. The Board member shall not be counted toward
achieving a quorum while the item is discussed.

However, the Board member may speak on the issue during the time that the general
public speaks on it and may leave the dais to speak from the same area as members of the
public. He/she may listen to the public discussion of the matter with members of the

public.

Leave the room until after the discussion, vote, and any other disposition of the matter is
concluded, unless the matter has been placed on the portion of the agenda reserved for

uncontested matters.

(U]

If the item is on the consent calendar, the Board member must recuse himself/herself
from discussing or voting on that matter, but the Board member is not required to leave
the room during consideration of the consent calendar.

29



30

BB 9270(c)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

4. If the Board's decision is made during closed session, disclose his/her interest orally
during the open session preceding the closed session. This disclosure shall be limited to a
declaration that his/her recusal is because of a conflict of interest pursuant to Government
Code 87100. He/she shall not be present when the item is considered in closed session
and shall not knowingly obtain or review a recording or any other nonpublic information
regarding the Board's decision.

(cf 3430 - Investing)
Conflict of Interest under Government Code 1090

Board members, employees, or district consultants shall not be financially interested in any
contract made by the Board on behalf of the district, including in the development, preliminary
discussions, negotiations, compromises, planning, reasoning, and specifications and solicitations
for bids. If a Board member has such a financial interest, the district is barred from entering into
the contract. (Government Code 1090 Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal.App. 4th 469)

A Board member shall not be considered (o be financially interested in a contract if his/her
interest is a "noninterest” as defined in Government Code 1091.5. One such noninterest is when
a Board member's spouse/registered domestic partner has been a district employee for at least
one year prior to the Board member's election or appointment. (Government Code 1091.5)

A Board member shall not be considered to be financially interested in a contract if he/she has
only a "remote interest” in the contract as specified in Government Code 1091 and if the remote
interest is disclosed during a Board meeting and noted in the official Board minutes. The
affected Board member shall not vote or debate on the matter or attempt to influence any other
Board member to enter into the contract. (Government Code 1091)

Even if there is not a prohibited conflict of interest, a Board member shall abstain from voting on
personnel matters that uniquely affect his/her relatives. However, a Board member may vote on
collective bargaining agreements and personnel matters that affect a class of employees to which
his/her relative belongs. Relative means an adult who is refated to the Board member by blood
or affinity within the third degree, as determined by the common law, or an individual in an
adoptive relationship within the third degree. (Education Code 35107)

A relationship within the third degree includes an individual's parents, grandparents, great-
grandparents, children, grandchildren, great-grandchildren, brothers, sisters, aunts, uncles,
nieces, nephews, and the similar family of the individual's spouse/registered domestic partner
unless the individual is widowed or divorced.



BB 9270(d)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

Common Law Doctrine Against Conflict of Interest

A Board member shall abstain from any official action in which histher private or personal
interest may conflict with his/her official duties.

Rule of Necessity or Legally Required Participation

On a case-by-case basis and upon advice of legal counsel, a Board member with a financial
interest in a contract may participate in the making of the contract if the rule of necessity or
legally required participation applies pursuant to Government Code 87101 and 2 CCR 18708.

Incompatible Offices and Activities

Board members shall not engage in any employment or activity or hold any office which is
inconsistent with, incompatible with, in conflict with, or inimical to the Board member's duties
as an officer of the district. (Government Code 1099, 1126)

(cf 4136/4236/4336 - Nonschool Employment)
Gifts

Board members and designated employees may accept gifts only under the conditions and
limitations specified in Government Code 89503 and 2 CCR 18730.

The limitation on gifis does not apply to wedding gifts and gifis exchanged between individuals
on birthdays, holidays, and other similar occasions, provided that the gifts exchanged are not
substantially disproportionate in value. (Government Code 89503)

Gifts of travel and related lodging and subsistence shall be subject to the current gitt limitation
except as described in Government Code 89506,

A gift of travel does not include travel provided by the district for Board members and
designated employees. (Government Code 89506)

Honoraria

Board members and designated employees shall not accept any honorarium, which is defined as
any payment made in consideration for any speech given, article published, or attendance at any
public or private gathering, in accordance with law. (Government Code 89501 , 89502)

31



BB 9270(e)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

The term honorarium does not include: (Government Code 89501)

I Earned income for personal services customarily provided in connection with a bona fide
business, trade, or profession unless the sole or predominant activity of the business,
trade, or profession is making speeches

28 Any honorarium which is not used and, within 30 days after receipt, is either returned to
the donor or delivered to the district for donation into the general fund without being
claimed as a deduction from income for tax purposes

Legal Reference
EDUCATION CODE
1006 Qualifications for holding office
35107 School district employees
35230-33240 Corrupt practices, especially:
35233 Prohibitions applicable to members of governing boards
41000-41003 Moneys received by school districis
297.5 Rights, protections. and benefits of registered domestic partners
GOVERNMENT CODE
1090-1099 Prohibitions applicable (o specified officers
1125-1129 Incompatible activities
81000-91014 Political Reform Act of 1974, especially.
82011 Code reviewing body
87100-87103.6 (eneral prohibitions
7200-87210 Disclosure
8§7300-87313 Conflict of interest code
87500 Statements of economic interests
89501-89503 Honoraria and gifts
91000-91014 Enforcement
PENAL CODE
85-88 Bribes
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2
18110-18997 Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission, especially:
187025 Public identification of a conflict of interest for Section 87200 filers
COURT DECISIONS
Klistoff v. Superior Court, (2007) 157 Cal App.4th 469
Thorpe v_Long Beach Community College District, (2000) 83 Cal App.4th 655
Kunec v. Brea Redevelopment Agency, (1997) 55 Cal App 4th 511

Legal References conlinued: (see next page)



BB 9270(f)

CONFLICT OF INTEREST (continued)

Legal Reference: (continued)
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
92 Ops.Cal Adity.Gen. 26 (2009)
92 Ops Cal Atrv.Gen. 19 (2009)
89 Ops.Cal Aty Gen 217 (2006)
86 Ops.Cal Aty Gen. 138(2003)
85 Ops Cal Ay Gen. 60 (2002)
82 Qps.Cal Atty.Gen. 83 (1999)
81 Ops.Cal Aty Gen. 327 (1998)
80 Ops.Cal Auy. Gen. 320 (1997)
69 Ops.Cal Aty Gen. 255 (1986)
68 Ops.Cal Aty Gen 171 (1985)

65 Ops.Cal Atty.Gen. 606 (1982)
63 Ops.Cal Aty Gen. 868 (1980)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Conflict of Interest: Overview of Key Issues for Governing Board Members, Fact Sheet, July 2010
FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICES COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS
Can I Vote? A Basic Overview of Public Officials” Obligations Under the Conflict-of-lterest Rules, 2005
INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT PUBLICATIONS
Understanding the Basics of Publie Service Ethics: Personal Financiad Gain Laws. 2009
Understanding the Busics of Public Service Ethics: Transparency Lews. 2009
WEB SITES
CSBA: hup:www.csba org
Fair Political Practices Commission: hupAvww fppe.ca.gov ;
Institute of Local Government: huip /Anww ca-ilg. org

Bylaw HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: February 22,2017 Hamilton City, California



34



HUSD ENROLLMENT OVER FIVE YEARS

1 2
2015-16 2016-17
304 HHS 264 HHS
9 EBHS 14 EBHS
K-5 K-5
415 68 414 6.8
728 ENROLLMENT 692 ENROLLMENT
712.26 ADA 6469.29 ADA

2015-2019

3

4

2017-18
269 HHS
12 EBHS
279 K-5
133 6-8

2018-19
286 HHS
9 EBHS
292 K-5
125 6-8

693 ENROLLMENT

712 ENROLLMENT

672,21 ADA

687.87 ADA

5

2019-20
265 HHS
14 EBHS
268 K-5
151 6-8

698 ENROLLMENT

670.81 ADA

Enroliment and ADA totals above are based on P2 Data Reporting except current year based on current reporting

:
b

g

2015-16 2016-17
2019-20 2019-20

8/13-8/30/19 9/3-9/27/19
#3STU GRADE #STU GRADE

11 TK 11 TK

39 K 39 K

45 1 47 1

42 2 42 2

40 3 40 3

46 4 47 4

40 5 40 )

59 6 59 6

43 7 43 7

48 8 48 8

68 9 68 9

74 10 74 10

78 11 79 11

53 12 54 12

686 TOTAL 691 TOTAL

2017-18

@ Enroliment ADA (H

Enroliment & ADA by School Year

2018-19

2019-20 2019-20
9/30-10/14/19 11/13/19-01/13/20 | ADA
#STU  GRADE #3TU GRADE
11 K 11 K 10.73
39 K 40 K 37.58
47 1 47 1 45.23
42 2 41 2 39.94
40 3 40 3 39.14
47 4 47 4 45.86
40 5 42 5 39.64
59 6 60 6 58.57
43 7 43 7 42.30
48 8 48 8 46.79
68 9 69 9 66.34
74 10 75 10 72.05
79 11 79 11 74.93
56 12 56 12 51.71
693 TOTAL 698 TOTAL 670.81

2019-20

25






PO #
19-567
19-134
PV#69
19-309
19-397
19-524
19-514
19-515
18-639
19-596

423
423

2018-19 Bond and Property Expenses

2018-2019 Bond and Property Related Expenses

Vendor
California Appraisals
Educational Facilities Program Management LLC
Glenn County Elections
Holdrege & Kull (NV5)
Holdrege & Kull (NV5)
HUSD Revolving Fund
Placeworks Inc.
Placeworks Inc.
School Works Inc.
Western Valuation Professional
Dannis Waoliver Kelley
Dannis Woliver Kelley

Description Amount
Appraisal for future site $ 4,000.00
Bond Development & Election $34,440.00
Bond Election Fees S 3,466.00
Environmental Site Assessment S 4,600.00
Prelim Assessment #032-230-015 S 4,060.62
New property project $ 1,500.00
Title 5 Risk Assessment $15,210.00
CEQA Review; Expansion Project $ 5,877.75
Development Fee Study $ 6,000.00
Appraisal - new property $3,500.00

matter # 10518 Property Purchase Negotiation S 6,470

matter # 10418 2018 Bond Discussions S 1,017

Total Amount Expended $90,140.87

Reimbursable Total $79,657.87

Reimbursable
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

No
Yes
Yes
No

37



38



"JU[ UOSYD1IT UOSHIBCOoY

D77 uswadeuely weidoid sanjide4 jeuoileanpl
D11 usawaseur|y weiSoid S3l|ide4 [euoieanpy
271 wawadeue wetdold Sa1Hj1de4 [eUOIIRINPT
D711 uawaseuey weisoid Sa1|10e4 [EUOIIEINPT
2S1d - [043U0D $92URISgNS J1X0] JO Juawliedaqg

"oU| syJomade|d

"Ju| SyI0MIde|d

"Ju| syJomade|d

U] SHI0MIe|d
(SAN) 1I) 8 983.pjoH
(SAN) 11l '8 @8a.pjoH
(SAN) 1IN %3 9834p|oH
(SAN) 11N '8 2834p|OH
{(SAN) 1INy 73 283.p|oH
A3]|9)] J9AIIOM SlUUR(
A3}19y J9AI[OAN SIULRQ
A3|19y J3A10MA SIULRQ
A3j[a) JanljoM siuueq
A3 JaAnIjOMA SIUURQ

06'85t'€6 S 020Z/€1/T Y3noiyj sainjipuadxs [E30]

000SZ'E S pue| o} Aaaing
00°00t S Aniadoud mau uoy poday ap1y
00'080°¢ S 193[0.1d uoisuedx3 SHH 404 SuiNsuo)
0008tV S 139/04d uoisuedx3 SHH 404 Bulynsuo)
00002V S 1239(01d uoisuedx3 SHH Jo} Suiynsuo)
00°0t0°s S 109foud uoisuedx3 SHH 40} SulynNsuo)
00°08t' T S Sunsa) aseyaund Auadoug
69 STL VI S 129foud uoisuedxa ‘mainay yOID
86°£99°6 S 109f0ud uoisuedxa ‘mainay YOI
8¥°'600'S S 13(0.d uoisuedxa ‘MaInly YDID
20269y S 129foJd uoisuedxa ‘mainay YDID
85°0v6°CT S ST0-0ET-CCO# JUaWISSassy wi|aid
¢9'TLT S STO-0ET-CE0H# 1UaWISSISSy wiljaid
00096 S STO-0EZ-CE0H# UIWISSIASSY WijdJd
00'St¥'T S STO-0E£7-TE0H# 1USISSISSY WIjid
€9°/50°T S STO-0EC-CE0H# JUSWISSIASSY Wiaid
00°£08 S €0TT/8TS Suipua Janiew - uoilisinboe pue| 01 pale|al saa |esa]
00'696C S 8TG Sulpud Janiew - uonisinboe pue| 0} paie|as saa4 |eSa]
00°S91 S 816 Sulpua Janew - uoinsinbae pue| 03 pajejal s394 [e9a]
009¢1'T S 815 Sulpua Ja31eWw - uonisinbae pue| 01 pale|al s394 |eda]
00°208 S 8TG Sulpua Janiew - uolsinboe pue| 01 paie|al $334 e

unowy L uondunsag

STTTETN

0202 ‘¢z AMenuer 8unas\ paeog asnH 104
0¢-6T0Z 40} saJn)puadx3 (puog) Tz pund Suipjing

6102/6/0T

SJUL solwi] 6T0Z/0Z/1T

6102/11/21
6TOT/ET/1T
6102/L2/6
6102/L2/6
610¢/L2/6
6102/0Z/11
6102/0Z/T1
6102/2/0T
610¢/L2/6
6102/11/CT
610C/€7/01
6102/91/0T
6102/L2/6
6102/L2/6
020z/8/1
610Z/T1/21
6T0C/ET/TT
6102/0€/01
610Z/LT/6
e

39



40



Certified Public Accountants serving
= K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

December 16, 2019

Board of Education
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, CA

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Hamilton Unified School District (the “District”) for the year ended June 30, 2019.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as well
as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information
in our letter to you dated March 4, 2015. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following
information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were
adopted, and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2019. We noted no transactions entered into
by the District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of depreciation of capital assets is based on historical estimates of each
capitalized item’s useful life. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
depreciation of capital assets in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources are based on actuarial valuations and pension contributions made
during the year. We evaluated the key factors, assumptions, and proportionate share calculations
used to develop the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken
as a whaole.

Management’s estimate of total other postemployment benefits (OPEB) obligation is based on an
actuarial valuation. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the total OPEB
obligation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

348 Olive Street 0: 819-270-8222
San Diego, CA F: 619-260-9085
92103 christywhite.com

41



42

2

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial statement
users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements were:

The disclosure of capital assets in Note 4 to the financial statements is based on historical information
which could differ from actual useful lives of each capitalized item.

The disclosure of the pension plans, net pension liabifity and related deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources in Note 11 to the financial statements represents management’s
estimates based on actuarial valuations and pension contributions made during the year. Actual
results could differ depending on the key factors, and assumptions and proportionate share
calculations used to develop the net pension liability and related deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources.

The disclosure of other postemployment benefits and the total OPEB obligation in Note 10 to the
financial statements represents management’s estimate based on an actuarial valuation. Actual
results could differ depending on the key factors and assumptions used for the actuarial valuation.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has
corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and
corrected by management were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial
statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report.
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated December 16, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed
on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that
the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the
normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.



Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to management’s discussion and analysis, and the required supplementary
information section, which are required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial
statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not
audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information section, which accompany the financial statements but
are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated
the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed
from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of Board of Education and management of the District
and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

C sty White ) Te.

Christy White, Inc.

43



44



V10! ANYY¥O

0% 1¥10L S3SN34X3
o5 SIFUDENT HOESINGLIDY TILeNntuoaang
$I5U0X] B|QESINGUIIRY $YJOMIIB|d

990'ts 0% 0 C £ 3 1 v i . TBT/8107 A SiUdETEowaq agvi Jo udisnjau pue 155763 T
“A8312.35 19 4Y3JeDS3S PUB|LLIRS JWILY JO S5O 1SISAIEUY leamynaudy ppy

I 1wimans g el

EE0Z/%/T1 CVSTOE/L/IT WOUJ BIEP UONINIISUOD 34 UONEIUNWIWIOD YNLLAA

los g ot 2 — ;
[] I8 v T 7 T v 0] heinpauzTes weas [eaueat 30 Ng muEll £
EBT’TS as 0s a a £6T°TS €25 6 | g 1 _ 1s3nbay eep ui s35usy3 ©1 3NP pow33ied o1 elep Dy dzAlEUe/Vodwisy z
55 as s o 0 0258 ots 3 ! 3 !

== e L = AenEay g

mees  sswrs  jsors  swts (s _® e s 5 |moansyose —— .
B69'75 0% o i [ 26978 G3 53 R I 1 3 5 51 1ol pEvG pue (g BUNUES 6T 94D WINFUE [IUSWISHAGE 0 3/REN IRRY  §
8vt'zS 0s 0§ o o BYP'IS 43 LT _ﬁ 5 r ] £ 13p UoNeziuIBpow ‘s1a3ys Buuiaauidua ‘suonens)s g sueid aus  §
\ | Jesmiza1y3.e pajepdn Buissiy sueld ays [enydanuol z 01 padl | Aljuaiing
“ | uonew.ojul [ewiuiw pue 3uidueya 01 anp a4 doj3A3p 03 sinoy padodsun
TET'TS  0S 0s$ Q 0 leer'is 24 S8 s 1 so UOISSILIQNS 302 ‘UDRALISSP UBLILM *| dseyd Ul Saliepunaq Bunajuoy  w
| 13U)sI] Wl Ayepunag (e8IP JO ¥28| 01 anp Asepunog Od z[BIPay
9558 03 0s$ & 0 |ggss s v & 1 61/02/8 1 61/52/¢ ‘1P Buoz ¢
| S19 104 4eds A1UND] LAY Yiim Ag|3p/uciiedunwiuod Jo palsad yiuour T
rPLES SST'TS 5025 BEFTS 628 B 1 5 t PUMD 018 '3SI0N) 610Z/5/T1 O 6107/ET/8 W)y SIINPAYDSA. TIsiA axs 33uyL ¢
PLES os _:ﬂ.mm _ 91 z 0ju1 133l02d 54 UDIIEJILNWWA3 (848 pue UM Padadsun Jo syIuow §
wdpng jesay dmuew ; 06TS 7487
¥5L |EI0L JUEINSUOIQRS FUEINSUOIqQNS SYJoMAIeld  %T SHIOMIIB|d  SHIOMdE|d | 3sioN SI19 AdojaipAx YL Nd Jld {
%0T _
Jsuueld  uawse)  |eaopuesg ysng weay |
muz:lﬁ_u pafald  ysor  opueN  aswis Yz oy MolRgeD ety
OUGMIYETd . =

1VS040¥d 150D 1YNOILIadY
12111510 [00YDS PAYILN UOHIWDH 'Y 3D LoIsUDEX] |004IS YBIK UOHILIBY

45



46



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

AUDIT REPORT
JUNE 30, 2019




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent AUItOrS’ REPOM ...ttt e b s e 1
Management’s DiSCUSSION @Nd ANAIYSIS.....uiuuiierieerniiriesis st ss s e s s b s 3
Basic Financial Statements

Government-wide Financial Statements

StALEMENT Of N BT P OSIHION. e ceetieeeieisieeeeiirteisriesiesstceretasestesassassssasss ssesteessesaneasesssseeasesnssssantnssaamesseersrenanssoarnssessarnsasassanin 10
St AtEIMENE OF ACEVILIES «.reevvrrreeseerereersersreesasieseasstestecsssrrassssasasssssssssessenssensssnssesssensesssrsssstases smsssnesaaessansenssssntssns arassasanen 11
Fund Financial Statements
Governmental Funds — Balance Sheet... a1 2
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Posmon ........................... 13
Governmental Funds — Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................... 14
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances t0 the StatemMent Of ACHVITIES ..civviviiciiiiicienii s vsrsseaseasrerssresmesssssamesasessasssneessssasesasessassentsssntssmassnransansin 15
Fiduciary Funds — Statement of Net POSItION ..ot 17
Fiduciary Funds — Statement of Changes in Net POSIION.....c.wummimsimsrasmsicsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssassnss 18
NOLES £ FINANCIAl SEALEIMIENES .. eeeeeeecerieeeesreesssesresrssceeesssesssarerareesiseseresasessesstess sanneransessssnsesbess anssErsasssensonsntonsnsessrnasseasses 19

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

General Fund - Budgetary Comparison Schedule .. s A e s D0
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratlos ................................................................................. 51
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalSTRS ......ceucuiercremincanieecsiseennnns 02
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - CalPERS ....ccovvreirieciinciniinnaiiiicinnnnn 03

Schedule of District ContributioNs = CalSTRS ....iiiiirrrrrrrierieresteessnrissrisssiesrssssansssssesssssisinssasas ssssssaesasnssssnssssssasssensas 54
Schedule of District Contributions = CAIPERS .....cviiiiiitireirerrrnerrerss e see s sesssssesmssacessaseesessasssssssssssmsssssssass vesssansenssnsevanes 55
Notes to Required Supplementary INformation ... e 56

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards.........ucrinii s s s 58
Schedule of Average Daily AHEeNdance (ADA) ... s s e s 59
Schedule of INSIIUCHIONEL TIME ...c.iviviceerereerereeer e e ssass saeas e sae s s s ta e sbe s s s e be e e s b eae b oA e e e e e E e e e nen s e e ennne s 60
Schedule of Financial Trends and ANEIYSIS ... it e e s s asse s enenss 61
Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements ...c....ccccoiciinicnicnnnes 62
Combining Statements — Non-Major Governmental Funds

CombiINING BAlANCE SHEEL.......vviiececereer it it e r e b bR ra s a s e s eh s 63

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances..........ccvonvncnniniiincnnns 64
Local Education Agency Organization StrUCIUIE ...t s 65

Notes to Supplementary INformation ... s e e 66



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
TABLE OF CONTENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ...........oecesecerenennn 67
Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program; and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required
DY the UNIfOrm GUIGENCE ......c. vttt vas e st sessssass e sessesssses s et st esssmssnas s sess et e st st enses e e enene st sesessen 69
ReEPOrt 0N State COMPIIBNCE ...ccvueiierireciirriceiier e asecsssiesesse s ssess bt es s e e eeaseseassesssesssstessansseaseassnsneasasasesesesessssnssen 71

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

SUMMArY Of AUGILOrS’ RESUIS...c.veeererereecrsessstnmsarecaressensrsessrantssmssssessessesssessasssesssssassessssessissasssss sossstsesssensssensassemssesessnssseseas 74
Financial StatemMeEnt FINAINGS ... eaeseecstie s sesss st ass s esasessse st ettt s b e ee e senessenenssenssesesaeseeeen 75
Federal Award Findings and QUESHONEA COSLS .....ceuvuiniierieriisesrssesesesssssessssssssssessssssssssssssssssssessesssssssesssssssenssensessseres 18
State Award Findings and QUESHONEA COSES ....uuicrerieeniiniiecisesississesssssssassssessssssssssssssssssssssssssessssssssesesssesssenssassuessoss £ 1
Summary Schedule of Prior AUit FINGINGS .......evcirmeerrsssssissessiess e eressesssssssessesssssseesesesssssssssssssessessssssesssssnssonssnns 78




50

FINANCIAL SECTION




Certified Public Accountants serving
‘ K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the Hamilton Unified School District, as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Hamilton Unified School
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Hamilton
Unified School District, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

348 Olive Street 0: 619-270-8222
San Diego, CA F: 619-260-9085
92103 christywhite.com

51



52

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required supplementary
information, such as management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes
in total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedules of proportionate share of net pension liability, and schedules of
District contributions for pensions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Hamilton Unified School District’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed in the table of
contents, including the schedule of expenditures of Federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The supplementary information listed in the table of contents is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 16, 2019 on
our consideration of Hamilton Unified School District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified
School District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Hamilton Unified School District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CM W)Zuh) The.

San Diego, California
December 16, 2019



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
INTRODUCTION
Our discussion and analysis of Hamilton Unified School District’s (District) financial performance provides an overview

of the District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. it should be read in conjunction with the
District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

P The District’s net position was $(136,488) at June 30, 2019. This was a decrease of $1,724,776 from the prior
year,

»  Overall revenues were $9,671,724 which was less than expenses of $11,396,500.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Components of the Financials Section

| |
Mgnagement S Basic Financial Required
Discussion & Supplementary
; Statements .
Analysis Information
I
l |
Government-Wide Fund Financial Notes to the Financial

Financial Statements Statements Statements

Summary < > Detail

3

53



54

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
Components of the Financials Section (continued)

This annual report consists of three parts — Management’s Discussion and Analysis (this section), the basic financial
statements, and required supplementary information. The three sections together provide a comprehensive overview
of the District. The basic financial statements are comprised of two kinds of statements that present financial
information from different perspectives:

Y Government-wide financial statements, which comprise the first two statements, provide both short-term
and long-term information about the entity’s overall financial position.

»  Fund financial statements focus on reporting the individual parts of District operations in more detail. The
fund financial statements comprise the remaining statements.

» Governmental Funds provide a detailed short-term view that helps you determine whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the District’s
programs.

» Fiduciary Funds report balances for which the District is a custodian or trustee of the funds, such
as Associated Student Bodies and pension funds.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required and other supplementary
information that further explain and support the financial statements.

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the government’s assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities, regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the District’s net position and how it has changed. Net position is one
way to measure the District’s financial health or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net
position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.

The government-wide financial statements of the District include governmental activities. All of the District’s basic
services are included here, such as regular education, food service, maintenance and general administration. Local
control formula funding and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.



HAMILTON UNIF{ED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The District’s net position was $(136,488) at June 30, 2019, as reflected in the table below. Of this amount,
$(6,304,829) was unrestricted. Restricted net position is reported separately to show legal constraints from debt

covenants and enabling legislation that limit the Governing Board’s ability to use that net position for day-to-day
operations.

Governmental Activities

2019 2018 Net Change
ASSETS
Current and other assets $ 4588165 $ 3,704,928 $ 883,237
Capital assets 6,369,309 5,951,927 417,382
Total Assets 10,957,474 9,656,855 1,300,619
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 2,830,221 2,609,278 220,943
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 590,219 701,972 (111,753)
Long-term liabilities 12,844,025 9,472,809 3,371,216
Total Liabilities 13,434,244 10,174,781 3,259,463
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 489,939 503,064 (13,125)
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,186,646 5,454,727 (268,081)
Restricted 981,695 1,329,589 (347,894)
Unrestricted (6,304,829) (5,196,028) (1,108,801)
Total Net Position $ (136,488) $ 1,588,288 $ (1,724,776)




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)
Changes in Net Position
The results of this year’s operations for the District as a whole are reported in the Statement of Activities. The table

below takes the information from the Statement and rearranges it slightly, so you can see our total revenues and
expenses for the year.

Governmental Activities

2019 2018 Net Change
REVENUES
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 49318 §$ 32677 $ 16,641
Operating grants and contributions 1,452,921 1,175,415 277,506
General revenues
Property taxes 1,630,983 1,561,966 69,017
Unrestricted federal and state aid 6,370,423 5,926,227 444196
Other 168,079 384,365 (216,286)
Total Revenues 9,671,724 9,080,650 591,074
EXPENSES
Instruction 5,971,168 5,062,754 908,414
Instruction-related services 1,343,398 1,245,189 98,209
Pupil services 1,222,649 961,545 261,104
General administration 796,973 743,046 53,927
Plant services 969,560 938,943 30,617
Debt service 58,010 21,639 36,371
Other outgo 1,034,742 641,497 393,245
Total Expenses 11,396,500 9,614,613 1,781,887
Change in net position (1,724,776) (533,963) (1,190,813)
Net Position - Beginning 1,588,288 2,122,251 (533,963)
Net Position - Ending $ (136488) $ 1,588,288 § (1,724,776)




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE ENTITY AS A WHOLE (continued)

Changes in Net Position (continued)

The total cost of all our governmental activities this year was $11,396,500, while net cost of services was only
$9,894,261 (refer to the table below). The amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed for these activities through

taxes was only $1,630,983 because the cost was paid by other governments and organizations who subsidized certain
programs with grants and contributions.

Net Cost of Services

2019 2018

Instruction $ 5277344 § 4,634,749
Instruction-related services 1,185,121 1,061,306
Pupil services 675,348 477,497
General administration 751,285 711,259
Plant services 942,651 858,874
Debt service 58,010 21,639
Transfers to other agencies 1,004,502 641,497

Total Expenses $ 9,894,261 $ 8,406,821

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S MAJOR FUNDS

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District
completed this year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $4,203,601, which is more than
last year’s ending fund balance of $3,128,176. The District’'s General Fund had $1,055,452 less in operating revenues
than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2019. The District’s Building Fund had $264,337 less in operating
revenues than expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2019, along with sources related to the new bond issuance
of $2,200,000 and transfers out of $350,000.

CURRENT YEAR BUDGET 2018-2019

During the fiscal year, budget revisions and appropriation transfers are presented to the Board for their approval on
aregular basis to reflect changes to both revenues and expenditures that become known during the year. In addition,
the Board of Education approves financial projections included with the Adopted Budget, First Interim, and Second
Interim financial reports. The Unaudited Actuals reflect the District’s financial projections and current budget based
on State and local financial information.

57



58

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Capital Assets

By the end of 2018-2019 the District had invested $6,369,309 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

Governmental Activities

2019 2018 Net Change
CAPITAL ASSETS

Land $ 293887 $ 293887 $ =
Construction in progress 1,150,401 439,471 710,930
Land improvements 604,362 604,362 -
Buildings & improvements 9,278,697 9,278,697 -
Furniture & equipment 1,629,370 1,629,370 -
Accumulated depreciation (6,587,408)  (6,293,860) (293,548)
Total Capital Assets $ 6,369,309 $ 5951927 $ 417,382

Long-Term Liabilities
At year-end, the District had $12,844,025 in long-term liabilities, a 35.59% increase from last year — as shown in the

table below. (More detailed information about the District's long-term liabilities is presented in footnotes to the financial
statements.)

Governmental Activities

2019 2018 Net Change _
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Total general obligation bonds $ 2,768,326 $ 497,200 $ 2,271,126
Early retirement incentive 525,610 141,220 384,390
Compensated absences 34,918 30,882 4,036
Total OPEB liability 1,139,051 1,147,101 (8,050)
Net pension liability 8,534,686 7,772,718 761,968
Less: current portion of long-term liabilities (158,566) (116,312) (42,254)
Total Long-term Liabilities $ 12,844,025 $ 9472809 $ 3,371,216




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of several circumstances
that could affect its future financial health.

The US economy continues to grow slowly, but the State economic growth is slowing down due to low levels of
available employees. However, the State is still experiencing overall economic prosperity. The State Budget for
Education contained an increase of 3.26% in fiscal year 2019-20, plus $3.15 billion in non-Proposition 98 funding for
school employer pension relief.

The fiscal policy for the funding of public education changes annually, based on fluctuations in State revenues. The
UCLA Anderson Forecast (June 2019) noted that the risk of recession is about 50% within the next 5-8 quarters
depending on the model, the biggest economic threat being from the escalating trade war with China and Mexico. If
a recession were to happen, State revenues for public education would be negatively impacted.

Landmark legislation passed in Year 2013 reformed California school district finance by creating the Local Control
Funding Formula (LCFF). The LCFF is designed to provide a flexible funding mechanism that links student
achievement to state funding levels. The LCFF provides a per pupil base grant amount, by grade span, that is
augmented by supplemental funding for targeted student groups in low income brackets, those that are English
language learners and foster youth.

Factors related to LCFF that the District is monitoring include: (1) estimates of funding in the next budget year and
beyond; (2) the Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) that aims to link student accountability measurements
to funding allocations; (3) ensuring the integrity of reporting student data through the California Longitudinal Pupil
Achievement Data System (CALPADs); and, (4) meeting annual compliance and audit requirements.

The District participates in state employee pensions plans, PERS and STRS, and both are underfunded. The District’s
proportionate share of the liability is reported in the Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2019. The amount of the
liability is material to the financial position of the District. To address the underfunding issues, the pension plans
received a one-time funding allocation from the 2019-20 State Budget and continue to raise employer rates in future
years. The projected increased pension costs to school employers remain a significant fiscal factor.

Enroliment can fluctuate due to factors such as population growth, competition from private, parochial, inter-district
transfers in or out, economic conditions and housing values. Losses in enroliment will cause a school district to lose
operating revenues without necessarily permitting the district to make adjustments in fixed operating costs.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the District’s budget for the 2019-20 fiscal year.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, students, and investors and creditors with a general
overview of the District’s finances and to show the District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need any additional financial information, contact the District’s Business Office,
Hamilton Unified School District, 620 Canal Street, PO Box 488; Hamilton City, CA 95951.

59



60

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Accounts receivable

Inventory

Prepaid expenses

Capital assets, not depreciated

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities, current portion
Long-term liabilities, non-current portion
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to pensions
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Capital projects
Debt service
Educational programs
All others
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10

Governmental
Activities

$ 4,091,383
474,898

9,835

12,049

1,444,288
4,925,021

10,957,474

2,734,908
95,313

2,830,221

400,938
30,715
158,566
12,844,025

13,434,244

489,939

489,939

5,186,646

163,459
234,420
471,001
112,725
(6,304,829)

$ (136,488)




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Net (Expenses)
Revenues and
Changes in
Program Revenues Net Position
Operating
Charges for Grants and Governmental
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
Instruction $ 5971,168 § 2605 $ 691219 § (5,277,344)
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration 444 - - (444)
Instructional library, media, and technology 226,122 4,643 14,271 (207,208)
School site administration 1,116,832 747 138,616 (977,469)
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation 162,230 - 2,421 (159,809)
Food services 619,696 32,084 464,385 (123,227)
All other pupil services 440,723 38 48,373 (392,312)
General administration
All other general administration 796,973 55 45,633 (751,285)
Plant services 969,560 8,932 17,977 (942,651)
Interest on long-term debt 58,010 - - (58,010)
Other outgo 1,034,742 214 30,026 (1,004,502)
Total Governmental Activities $ 11,396,500 $ 49,318 § 1,452,921 (9,894,261)
General revenues
Taxes and subventions
Property taxes, levied for general purposes 1,558,948
Property taxes, levied for debt service 72,035
Federal and state aid not restricted for specific purposes 6,370,423
Interest and investment earnings 42,425
Miscellaneous 125,654
Subtotal, General Revenue 8,169,485
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (1,724,776)
Net Position - Beginning 1,588,288
Net Position - Ending $ (136,488)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

11

61



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET

JUNE 30, 2019

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Building Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 1819401 $ 1,663,729 §$ 608,253 $ 4,091,383
Accounts receivable 328,904 1,592 144,402 474,898
Due from other funds 110,797 - 6,741 117,538
Stores inventory - - 9,835 9,835
Prepaid expenditures 12,049 - - 12,049
Total Assets $ 2,271,151 § 1,665,321 $ 769,231 $ 4,705,703
LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities $ 336,848 $ - % 17,001 $ 353,849
Due to other funds 6,231 79,658 31,649 117,538
Unearned revenue 30,715 - - 30,715
Total Liabilities 373,794 79,658 48,650 502,102
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 22,049 - 9,835 31,884
Restricted 355,546 1,585,663 673,238 2,614,447
Committed - - 37,508 37,508
Assigned 211,395 E - 211,395
Unassigned 1,308,367 - - 1,308,367
Total Fund Balances 1,897,357 1,585,663 720,581 4,203,601
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2271151 $ 1,665,321 $ 769,231 $ 4,705,703

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET
POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

Total Fund Balance - Governmental Funds $ 4,203,601

Amounts reported for assets and liabilities for governmental activities in the statement of net
position are different from amounts reported in governmental funds because:

Capital assets:

In governmental funds, only current assets are reported. In the statement of net position,
all assets are reported, including capital assets and accumulated depreciation:
Capital assets $ 12,956,717
Accumulated depreciation (6,587,408) 6,369,309

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is not recognized until the period in
which it matures and is paid. In the government-wide statement of activities, it is
recognized in the period that it is incurred. The additional liability for unmatured interest
owing at the end of the period was: (47,089)

Long-term liabilities:
In governmental funds, only current liabilities are reported. In the statement of net
position, all liabilities, including long-term liabilities, are reported. Long-term liabilities
relating to governmental activities consist of:
Total general obligation bonds $ 2,768,326

Early retirement incentive 525,610
Compensated absences 34,918
Total OPEB liability 1,139,051
Net pension liability 8,534,686 (13,002,591)
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions:
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are
not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to pensions are reported.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions $ 2,734,908
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (489,939) 2,244,969
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB:
In governmental funds, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB are
not reported because they are applicable to future periods. In the statement of net
position, deferred outflows and inflows of resources relating to OPEB are reported.
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 95,313
Total Net Position - Governmental Activities $ (136,488)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

13

63



64

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES
LCFF sources
Federal sources
Other state sources
Other local sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Instruction
Instruction-related services
Instructional supervision and administration
Instructional library, media, and technology
School site administration
Pupil services
Home-to-school transportation
Food services
All other pupil services
General administration
All other general administration
Plant services
Facilities acquisition and maintenance
Transfers to other agencies
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other
Total Expenditures
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Other sources
Transfers out
Net Financing Sources (Uses)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning
Fund Balance - Ending

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Building Fund Funds Funds

$ 7,585,746 § -5 53,000 $ 7,638,746
312,481 - 467,227 779,708
1,004,724 - 367,551 1,372,275
116,763 1,692 173,423 291,778
9,019,714 1,592 1,061,201 10,082,507
5,341,488 199,061 5,540,549

444 - - 444

192,869 - 6,978 199,847

970,392 - 101,507 1,071,899

99,198 - - 99,198

10,539 - 548,566 559,105

422,903 - 4,985 427,888

728,301 - 7,130 736,431
828,289 - 49,057 877,346

631,272 79,658 - 710,930

848,471 - - 848,471

- - 72,100 72,100

- 186,271 19,829 206,100

10,075,166 265,929 1,009,213 11,350,308
(1,055,452) (264,337} 51,988 (1,267,801)
377,972 - - 377,972

- 2,200,000 143,226 2,343,226
. (350,000) (27,972) (377,972)

377,972 1,850,000 115,254 2,343,226
(677,480) 1,585,663 167,242 1,075,425
2,574,837 - 553,339 3,128,176

$ 1,897,357 § 1,585,663 $ 720,581 & 4,203,601

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

14



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different from amounts
reported in governmental funds because:

Capital outlay:
In governmental funds, the costs of capital assets are reported as expenditures in the period when
the assets are acquired. In the statement of activities, costs of capital assets are allocated over
their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The difference between capital outlay
expenditures and depreciation expense for the period is:
Expenditures for capital outlay: $ 710,930
Depreciation expense: (293,548)

Debt service:
In governmental funds, repayments of long-term debt are reported as expenditures. In the
government-wide statements, repayments of long-term debt are reported as reductions of
liabilities. Expenditures for repayment of the principal portion of long-term debt were:

Debt proceeds:
In governmental funds, proceeds from debt are recognized as Other Financing Sources. In the

government-wide statements, proceeds from debt are reported as increases to liabilities.
Amounts recognized in governmental funds as proceeds from debt, net of issue premium or
discount, were:

Unmatured interest on long-term debt:
In governmental funds, interest on long-term debt is recognized in the period that it becomes due.

In the government-wide statement of activities, it is recognized in the period it is incurred.
Unmatured interest owing at the end of the period, less matured interest paid during the period
but owing from the prior period, was:

Compensated absences:
In governmental funds, compensated absences are measured by the amounts paid during the

period. In the statement of activities, compensated absences are measured by the amount
earned. The difference between compensated absences paid and compensated absences
earned, was:

(continued on next page)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

15

1,075,425

417,382

72,100

(2,343,226)

(38,181)

(4,036)

65



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES, continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB):
In governmental funds, OPEB expenses are recognized when employer OPEB
contributions are made. In the statement of activities, OPEB expenses are recognized on
the accrual basis. This year, the difference between OPEB expenses and actual
employer OPEB contributions was: (11,054)

Pensions:
In governmental funds, pension costs are recognized when employer contributions are
made, in the government-wide statement of activities, pension costs are recognized on
the accrual basis. This year, the difference between accrual-basis pension costs and
employer contributions was: (508,796)

Other liabilities not normally liquidated with current financial resources:
in the government-wide statements, expenses must be accrued in connection with any
liabilities incurred during the period that are not expected to be liquidated with current
financial resources. Examples include special termination benefits such as retirement
incentives financed over time, and structured legal settlements. This year, expenses
incurred for such obligations were: (384,390)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 3 (1,724,776)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

16



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due to student groups
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted
Total Net Position

Trust Funds Agency Funds
Private-Purpose Student Body
Trust Fund Fund
$ 31,096 $ 146,162
31,096 $ 146,162
- % 146,162
- § 146,162
31,096
$ 31,096

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

17

67



68

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS
Other trust activities
Total Deductions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning
Net Position - Ending

18

Trust Funds

Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

$ 7,210

7,210

8,750

8,750

(1,540)
32,636

$ 31,096




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The Hamilton Unified School District (the “District”) accounts for its financial transactions in accordance with the
policies and procedures of the Department of Education's California School Accounting Manual. The accounting
policies of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

The District operates under a locally elected Board form of government and provides educational services to
grades K-12 as mandated by the state. A reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component
units, and other organizations that are included to ensure the financial statements are not misleading. The primary
government of the District consists of all funds, departments and agencies that are not legally separate from the
District. For the District, this includes general operations, food service, and student-related activities.

B. Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. Component
units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District in that the District approves their
budget, the issuance of their debt or the levying of their taxes. In addition, component units are other legally
separate organizations for which the District is not financially accountable but the nature and significance of the
organization’s relationship with the District is such that exclusion would cause the District’s financial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. The District has no such component units.

C. Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Statements. The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information
about the primary government (the District). These statements inciude the financial activities of the overall
government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of
internal activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenue, and
other non-exchange transactions.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenue for each
function of the District’s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function. Indirect expense allocations
that have been made in the funds have been reserved for the statement of activities. Program revenues include
charges paid by the recipients of the goods or services offered by the programs and grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting of operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are
not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues. The comparison of program revenues
and expenses identifies the extent to which each program or business segment is self-financing or draws from
the general revenues of the District.

19



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fund Financial Statements. The fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds,
including its fiduciary funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental and fiduciary — are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a
separate column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds.

Governmental funds are used to account for activities that are governmental in nature. Governmental activities
are typically tax-supported and include education of pupils, operation of food service and child development
programs, construction and maintenance of school facilities, and repayment of long-term debt.

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the District in a trustee or agency capacity for others that
cannot be used to support the District's own programs.

Major Governmental Funds

General Fund: The General Fund is the main operating fund of the District. It is used to account for all activities
except those that are required to be accounted for in another fund. In keeping with the minimum number of funds
principle, all of the District's activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to
account for an activity in another fund. A District may have only one General Fund.

Building Fund: This fund exists primarily to account separately for proceeds from the sale of bonds (Education
Code Section 15146) and may not be used for any purposes other than those for which the bonds were issued.
Other authorized revenues to the Building Fund are proceeds from the sale or lease-with-option-to-purchase of
real property (Education Code Section 17462) and revenue from rentals and leases of real property specifically
authorized for deposit into the fund by the governing board (Education Code Section 41003).

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds: Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service
or capital projects. The District maintains the following special revenue funds:

Child Development Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues to
operate child development programs. All moneys received by the District for, or from the operation of, child
development services covered under the Child Care and Development Services Act (Education Code Section
8200 et seq.) shall be deposited into this fund. The moneys may be used only for expenditures for the
operation of child development programs. The costs incurred in the maintenance and operation of child
development services shall be paid from this fund, with accounting to reflect specific funding sources
(Education Code Section 8328).

Adult Education Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local revenues for adult
education programs. Money in this fund shall be expended for adult education purposes only. Moneys
received for programs other than adult education shali not be expended for adult education (Education Code
Sections 52616[b] and 52501.5{a]).

20



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Presentation (continued)

Non-Major Governmental Funds (continued)

Special Revenue Funds (continued):

Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund: This fund is used to account separately for federal, state, and local
resources to operate the food service program (Education Code Sections 38090-38093). The Cafeteria
Special Revenue Fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the governing board as
necessary for the operation of the District's food service program (Education Code Sections 38091 and
38100).

Deferred Maintenance Fund: This fund is used to account separately for state apportionments and the
District's contributions for deferred maintenance purposes (Education Code Sections 17582-17587). In
addition, whenever the state funds provided pursuant to Education Code Sections 17584 and 17585
{(apportionments from the State Allocation Board) are insufficient to fully match the local funds deposited in
this fund, the governing board of a school district may transfer the excess local funds deposited in this fund
to any other expenditure classifications in other funds of the District (Education Code Sections 17582 and
17583).

Capital Project Funds: Capital project funds are established to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust
funds).

Capital Facilities Fund: This fund is used primarily to account separately for moneys received from fees
levied on developers or other agencies as a condition of approving a development (Education Code Sections
17620-17626). The authority for these levies may be county/city ordinances (Government Code Sections
65970-65981) or private agreements between the District and the developer. Interest earned in the Capital
Facilities Fund is restricted to that fund (Government Code Section 66006).

Debt Service Funds: Debt service funds are established to account for the accumulation of resources for and
the payment of principal and interest on general long-term debt.

Bond Interest and Redemption Fund: This fund is used for the repayment of bonds issued for the District
(Education Code Sections 15125-15262). The board of supervisors of the county issues the bonds. The
proceeds from the sale of the bonds are deposited in the county treasury to the Building Fund of the District.
Any premiums or accrued interest received from the sale of the bonds must be deposited in the Bond Interest
and Redemption Fund of the District. The county auditor maintains control over the District's Bond Interest
and Redemption Fund. The principal and interest on the bonds must be paid by the county treasurer from
taxes levied by the county auditor-controller.

21

71



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Basis of Presentation (continued)

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds: Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held in a trustee or agent
capacity for others that cannot be used to support the District's own programs. The key distinction between trust
and agency funds is that trust funds are subject to a trust agreement that affects the degree of management
involvement and the length of time that the resources are held.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund: The Private-Purpose Trust Fund is a scholarship trust fund, and consists only
of accounts such as cash and balancing net position accounts.

Student Body Fund: The Student Body Fund is an agency fund and, therefore, consists only of accounts
such as cash and balancing fiability accounts, such as due to student groups. The student body itself
maintains its own general fund, which accounts for the transactions of that entity in raising and expending
money to promote the general welfare, morale, and educational experiences of the student body (Education
Code Sections 48930-48938).

D. Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus

Government-Wide and Fiduciary Financial Statements

The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus. The government-wide and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are
incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

Net Position equals assets and deferred outflows of resources minus liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
The net position should be reported as restricted when constraints placed on its use are either externally imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The net position restricted for other
activities results from special revenue funds and the restrictions on their use.

Governmental Funds

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in
the financial statements. Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting.

22



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Basis of Accounting - Measurement Focus (continued)

Revenues - Exchange and Non-Exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded under the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is
recorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. “Available” means the
resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter
to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. Generally, “available” means collectible within the current
period or within 60 days after year-end. However, to achieve comparability of reporting among California schoal
districts and so as not to distort normal revenue patterns, with specific respect to reimbursements grants and
corrections to State-aid apportionments, the California Department of Education has defined available for school
districts as collectible within one year.,

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, and entitlements. Under the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from the grants and entitlements is
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources are to be used
or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are provided
to the District on a reimbursement basis. Under the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Unearned Revenue \

Unearned revenue arises when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria
for recognition in the current period or when resources are received by the District prior to the incurrence of
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the
District has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet
and revenue is recognized.

Certain grants received that have not met eligibility requirements are recorded as unearned revenue. On the
governmental fund financial statements, receivables that will not be collected within the available period are also
recorded as unearned revenue.

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basis of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time a liability is incurred. On the modified
accrual basis of accounting, expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in which the related
fund liability is incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However, under the modified accrual basis of
accounting, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization,
are not recognized in the governmental funds. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for
use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

23



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The District’s cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments with original maturities greater than one year are stated at fair value. Fair value is estimated based
on quoted market prices at year-end. All investments not required to be reported at fair value are stated at cost
or amortized cost. Fair values of investments in county and State investment pools are determined by the program
sponsor.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at historical cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of governmental fund-
type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Capital assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide
statement of net position, but are not reported in the fund financial statements.

Capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and retirements
during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair acquisition value as of the date received. The
District maintains a capitalization threshold of $5,000. The District does not own any infrastructure as defined in
GASB Statement No. 34. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not
add to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset’s life are not capitalized. All reported capital assets,
except for land and construction in progress, are depreciated. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining
useful lives of the related capital assets.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Class Estimated Useful Life
Buildings and Improvements 25 - 50 years
Furniture and Equipment 15 - 20 years
Vehicles 8 years

Interfund Balances

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are classified as
"Due from other funds/Due to other funds.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental activities columns
of the statement of net position.

24



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position (continued)

Compensated Absences

Accumulated unpaid employee vacation benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are earned. The entire
compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental funds,
the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events such
as employee resignations and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with
expendable available financial resource. These amounts are recorded in the fund from which the employees who
have accumulated leave are paid.

Accumulated sick leave benefits are not recognized as liabilities of the District. The District's policy is to record
sick leave as an operating expense in the period taken because such benefits do not vest, nor is payment
probable; however, unused sick leave is added to the creditable service period for calculation of retirement
benefits when the employee retires.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely
manner and in full from current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds.

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense have been determined by an independent actuary. For
this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when currently due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms.

Generally accepted accounting principles require the reported results must pertain to liability and asset
information within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date July 1, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2018
Measurement Period  July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018

Gains and losses related to changes in total OPEB liability are recognized in OPEB expense systematically over
time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in OPEB expense for the year the gain or loss occurs. The
remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and
are to be recognized in future OPEB expense. The amortization period differs depending on the source of gain
or loss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.
All other amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average expected remaining service lives of all
members that are provided with benefits (active, inactive, and retired) at the beginning of the measurement
period.

25



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources. Fund Balance and Net

Position (continued)

Premiums and Discounts

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of
net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
straight-line method.

Deferred Outflows/Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resaurces.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
{expenselexpenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the District will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the defined
benefit pension plans (the Plans) of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) and the
California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) and additions to/deductions from the Plans’ fiduciary
net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as
follows: '

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance classification reflects amounts that are not in spendable form.
Examples include inventory, prepaid items, the long-term portion of loans receivable, and nonfinancial assets held
for resale. This classification also reflects amounts that are in spendable form but that are legally or contractually
required to remain intact, such as the principal of a permanent endowment.

Restricted - The restricted fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to externally imposed and legally
enforceable constraints. Such constraints may be imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or may be imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legistation.

Committed - The committed fund balance classification reflects amounts subject to internal constraints self-
imposed by formal action of the Governing Board. The constraints giving rise to committed fund balance must be
imposed no later than the end of the reporting period. The actual amounts may be determined subsequent to that
date but prior to the issuance of the financial statements. In contrast to restricted fund balance, committed fund
balance may be redirected by the government to other purposes as long as the original constraints are removed
or modified in the same manner in which they were imposed, that is, by the same formal action of the Governing
Board.

26



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, Fund Balance and Net
Position (continued)

Fund Balance (continued)

Assigned - The assigned fund balance classification reflects amounts that the government intends to be used for
specific purposes. Assignments may be established either by the Governing Board or by a designee of the
governing body, and are subject to neither the restricted nor committed levels of constraint. In contrast to the
constraints giving rise to committed fund balance, constraints giving rise to assigned fund balance are not
required to be imposed, modified, or removed by formal action of the Governing Board. The action does not
require the same level of formality and may be delegated to another body or official. Additionally, the assignment
need not be made before the end of the reporting period, but rather may be made any time prior to the issuance
of the financial statements.

Unassigned - In the General Fund only, the unassigned fund balance classification reflects the residual balance
that has not been assigned to other funds and that is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes.
However, deficits in any fund, including the General Fund that cannot be eliminated by reducing or eliminating
amounts assigned to other purposes are reported as negative unassigned fund balance.

The District applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within
unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance
classifications could be used.

F. Interfund Activity

Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller funds and as expenditures/expenses
in the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment
are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other financing sources/uses in
governmental funds. Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that
initially paid for them are not presented in the financial statements. Interfund transfers are eliminated in the
governmental activities columns of the statement of activities.

G. Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

H. Budgetary Data

The budgetary pracess is prescribed by provisions of the California Education Code and requires the governing
board to hold a public hearing and adopt an operating budget no later than July 1 of each year. The District
governing board satisfied these requirements. The adopted budget is subject to amendment throughout the year
to give consideration to unanticipated revenue and expenditures primarily resulting from events unknown at the
time of budget adoption with the legal restriction that expenditures cannot exceed appropriations by major object
account.,

27



78

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

H.

Budgetary Data (continued

The amounts reported as the original budgeted amounts in the budgetary statements reflect the amounts when
the original appropriations were adopted. The amounts reported as the final budgeted amounts in the budgetary
statements reflect the amounts after all budget amendments have been accounted for. For purposes of the
budget, on-behalf payments have not been included as revenue and expenditures as required under generally
accepted accounting principles.

Property Tax

Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are payable in two
installments on November 1 and February 1 and become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively.
Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31. The County Auditor-Controller
bills and collects the taxes on behalf of the District. Local property tax revenues are recorded when received.

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 84 - In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This standard’s
primary objective is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported. The statement is effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. The District has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 87 — In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard’s primary
objective is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and
financial reporting for leases by governments. The statement is effective for periods beginning after December
15, 2019. The District has not determined the impact on the financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 88 — In April 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt,
including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. This standard’s primary objective is to improve the
information that is disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct
borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt. The statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The District has
implemented GASB Statement No. 88 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS

A. Summary of Cash and Investments

Governmental Fiduciary
Activities Funds
Investment in county treasury $ 4,076,383 % -
Cash on hand and in banks 5,000 177,258
Cash in revolving fund 10,000 -
Total cash and investments $ 4,091,383 $ 177,258
28



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

B. Policies and Practices

The District is authorized under California Government Code to make direct investments in local agency bonds,
notes, or warrants within the state; U.S. Treasury instruments; registered state warrants or treasury notes;
securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies; bankers acceptances; commercial paper; certificates of deposit
placed with commercial banks and/or savings and loan companies; repurchase or reverse repurchase
agreements; medium term corporate notes; shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management
companies, certificates of participation, obligations with first priority security; collateralized mortgage obligations;
and the County Investment Pool.

Investment in County Treasury — The District maintains substantially all of its cash in the County Treasury in
accordance with Education Code Section 41001. The Glenn County Treasurer’s pooled investments are managed
by the County Treasurer who reports on a monthly basis to the board of supervisors. In addition, the function of
the County Treasury Oversight Committee is to review and monitor the County’s investment policy. The
committee membership includes the Treasurer and Tax Collector, the Auditor-Controller, Chief Administrative
Officer, Superintendent of Schools Representative, and a public member. The fair value of the District's
investment in the pool is based upon the District's pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County
Treasurer for the entire portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasurer, which is recorded on the
amortized cost basis.

. General Authorizations

Except for investments by trustees of debt proceeds, the authority to invest District funds deposited with the
county treasury is delegated to the County Treasurer and Tax Collector. Additional information about the
investment policy of the County Treasurer and Tax Collector may be obtained from its website. The table below
identifies the investment types permitted by California Government Code.

Maximum Maximum Maximum

Remaining Percentage of Investment in
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
Registered State Bonds, Notes, Warrants 5 years None None
U. S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U. S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker’s Acceptance 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% of base None
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Joint Powers Authority Pools N/A None None

29

79



80

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

D.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. The District manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing in the County Treasury. The
District maintains a pooled investment with the County Treasury with a fair value of approximately $4,064,559
and an amortized book value of $4,076,383.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The
investments in the County Treasury are not required to be rated. As of June 30, 2019, the pooled investments in

the County Treasury were not rated.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District does
not have a policy for custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the California Government Code requires that a
financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the pledged
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110 percent of the total amount deposited by the public
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of 105 percent of the secured deposits. As of June 30,
2019, the District's bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Fair Value

The District categorizes the fair value measurements of its investments based on the hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure an asset's fair value. The following provides a summary of the hierarchy used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, or other inputs that are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs should be developed using the best information available under the circumstances,
which might include the District's own data. The District should adjust that data if reasonable available information
indicates that other market participants would use different data or certain circumstances specific to the District
are not available to other market participants.

Uncategorized - Investments in the Glenn County Treasury Investment Pool are not measured using the input

levels above because the District's transactions are based on a stable net asset value per share. All contributions
and redemptions are transacted at $1.00 net asset value per share.

30



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued)

G. Eair Value (continued)

The District's fair value measurements at June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Uncategorized

Investment in county treasury $ 4,064,559
Total fair market value of investments § 4,064,559

NOTE 3 ~ ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Building Fund Funds Activities
Federal Government
Categorical aid $ 100,580 $ - $ 89,028 $ 189,608
State Government
Categorical aid 12,070 - 14,291 26,361
Lottery 34,041 - - 34,041
Local Government
Other local sources 182,213 1,592 41,083 224,888
Total $ 328,904 $ 1,592 $ 144,402 $ 474,898
NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:
Balance Balance
July 01, 2018 Additions Deletions June 30, 2019
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 293,887 § -3 $ 293,887
Construction in progress 439,471 710,930 1,150,401
Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 733,358 710,930 1,444,288
Capital assets being depreciated
Land improvements 604,362 - 604,362
Buildings & improvements 9,278,697 - 9,278,697
Furniture & equipment 1,629,370 - 1,629,370
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 11,512,429 - 11,512,429
Less Accumulated Depreciation
Land improvements 457,543 18,237 475,780
Buildings & improvements 4,676,600 235,686 4,912,286
Furniture & equipment 1,159,717 39,625 1,199,342
Total Accumulated Depreciation 6,293,860 293,548 6,587,408
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, net $ 5,951,927 $ 417,382 § $ 6,369,309
31

81



82

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS (continued)
Depreciation expense is allocated to governmental functions as follows

Governmental Activities
Instruction
Home-to-school transportation
Food services
All other pupil services
All other general administration
Plant services

Total depreciation expense

NOTE 5 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

A. Interfund Receivables/Payables (Due From/Due To)

$ 181,266
53,591
21,057
6,189
9,066
22,379

$ 293,548

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2019 were as follows:

Due From Other Funds

Non-Major
Governmental
Due To Other Funds General Fund Funds Total
General Fund $ - 3 6231 $ 6,231
Building Fund 79,658 - 79,658
Non-Major Governmental Funds 31,139 510 31,649
Total Due From Other Funds $ 110,797 $ 6741 $ 117,538
The General Fund owed the Non-Major Child Development Fund for expenses incurred. $ 6,231
The Building Fund owed the General Fund for expenses incurred. 79,658
The Non-Major Adult Education Fund owed the General Fund for expenses incurred. 20,653
The Non-Major Child Development Fund owed the General Fund for salaries. 10,486
The Non-Major Child Development Fund owed the Nan-Major Cafeteria Fund for deposit correction. 510
Total $ 117,538

B. Operating Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Interfund Transfers in

Interfund Transfers Out General Fund Total
Building Fund $ 350,000 $ 350,000
Non-Major Governmental Funds 27972 27972
Total Interfund Transfers $ 377972 % 377,972
The Building Fund transferred to the General Fund for expenses incurred. $ 350,000
The Non-Major Aduit Education Fund transferred to the General Fund for expenses incurred. 27972
Total $ 377,972

32




HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 6 ~ ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabitities at June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Non-Major Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds District-Wide Activities
Payroll $ 181,138 $ - % - 8 181,138
Vendors payable 155,710 17,001 - 172,711
Unmatured interest - - 47,089 47,089
Total $ 336,848 $ 17,001 $ 47,089 $ 400,938

NOTE 7 - UNEARNED REVENUE

Unearned revenue at June 30, 2019 consisted of $30,715 in state categorical sources in the General Fund.

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

A schedule of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019 consisted of the following:

Balance Balance Balance Due
July 01, 2018 Additions Deductions June 30, 2019 In One Year
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 497,200 $ 2,200,000 §$ 72,100 §$ 2,625,100 $ 76,500
Unamortized premium - 143,226 - 143,226 4,092
Total general obligation bonds 497,200 2,343,226 72,100 2,768,326 80,592
Early retirement incentive 141,220 428,602 44,212 525,610 77,974
Compensated absences 30,882 4,036 - 34,918 -
Total OPEB liabitity 1,147,101 - 8,050 1,139,051

Net pension liability 7,772,718 761,968 - 8,534,686 -
Total $ 9,589,121 § 3,537,832 § 124362 $ 13,002,591 $ 158,566

Payments for general obligation bonds are made in the Bond Interest and Redemption Fund.
Payments for early retirement incentive are made in the General Fund.

- Payments for compensated absences are typically liquidated in the General Fund and the Non-Major

Governmental Funds.

A. Bonded Debt

Bonds Bonds
Issue Maturity Interest Original Outstanding Outstanding
Series Date Date Rate Issue July 01, 2018 Additi Deducti June 30, 2019
2011 Refunding August 30, 2011 August 1, 2023 4.30% $ 886200 $ 497,200 $ - % 72100 $ 425,100
Election 2018, Series 2019A June 5, 2019 August 1, 2053 4.00% 2,200,000 - 2,200,000 - 2,200,000
$ 497,200 $ 2,200,000 §$ 72,100 % 2,625,100
33

83



84

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued)

A. Bonded Debt (continued)

Election 1998

In an election held April 14, 1998, the voters authorized the District to issue and sell $1,340,000 of principal
amount of general obligation bonds. These bonds were issued for the purpose of constructing and acquiring a
new library and classrooms for Hamilton High School.

There was one issuance under this election, Series 1998, which was issued on August 6, 1998 with interest rates
ranging from 3.90% to 4.70%. The original issuance consisted of $430,000 in current interest serial bonds and
$910,000 in current interest term bonds. Interest accrues from August 1, 1998 and is payable semi-annually on
February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 1999. Principal is payable annually on August 1,
commencing August 1, 2000 through the final maturity date of August 1, 2023. On August 30, 2011, the District
issued Refunding Notes to redeem the outstanding bonds.

2011 Refunding Notes

On August 30, 2011, the District issued $886,200 of refunding notes. The notes were issued to redeem the
outstanding Election 1998, Series 1998 bonds. The bonds were issued as current interest serial bonds and carry
interest of 4.30%. The transaction resulted in an economic gain {difference between the present value of debt
service on the old bonds and the new notes) of $30,720. The principal balance outstanding on June 30, 2019
amounted to $425,100.

Election 2018

In an election held November 6, 2018, the voters authorized the District to issue and sell $7,000,000 of principal
amount of general obligation bonds. These bonds were issued to finance the acquisition, construction, furnishing
and equipping of District facilities.

There has been one issuance under this election, Series 2019A, which was issued on June 5, 2019 with a stated
interest rate of 4.00%. The original issuance consisted of $645,000 in current interest serial bonds and $1,555,000
in current interest term bonds. Interest on the bonds is payable on February 1 and August 1 of each year,
commencing February 1, 2020. Principal is payable annualty on August 1, commencing August 1, 2020 through
the final maturity date of August 1, 2053.

B. Debt Service Requirements to Maturity — Bonds

The bonds mature through 2054 as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2020 $ 76,500 $ 65,646 $ 142,146
2021 285,800 102,164 387,964
2022 235,100 86,486 321,586
2023 89,300 79,736 169,036
2024 93,400 75,808 169,208
2025 - 2029 - 369,000 369,000
2030 - 2034 65,000 364,500 429,500
2035 - 2039 175,000 340,500 515,500
2040 - 2044 320,000 292,000 612,000
2045 - 2049 510,000 209,400 719,400
2050 - 2054 775,000 82,300 857,300
Total $ 2,625,100 $ 2,067,540 $ 4,692,640
34



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued)
C. Early Retirement Incentives

The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California State Teachers’ Retirement System
(CalSTRS) whereby 10 employees (2 in the 2010-11 fiscal year, 2 in the 2011-12 fiscal year, 4 in the 2014-15
fiscal year, and 2 in the 2018-19 fiscal year) of the District elected to take early retirement in exchange for
supplementary retirement benefits.

The District entered into a supplementary retirement plan with the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS) whereby 7 employees (1 in the 2014-15 fiscal year and 6 in the 2018-19 fiscal year) of the
District elected to take early retirement in exchange for supplementary retirement benefits,

Future payments for the early retirement plans are as follows:

Year Ended June 30, Payment

2020 $ 95,981

2021 84,694

2022 81,987

2023 79,279

2024 57,028

2025 - 2029 234,636

Total minimum lease payments 633,605
Less amount representing interest (107,995)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 525,610

D. Compensated Absences

Total unpaid employee compensated absences as of June 30, 2019 amounted to $34,918. This amount is
included as part of long-term liabilities in the government-wide financial statements.

E. Other Postemployment Benefits

The District’s beginning total OPEB liability was $1,147,101 and decreased by $8,050 during the year ended June
30, 2019. The ending total OPEB liability at June 30, 2019 was $1,139,051. See Note 10 for additional information
regarding the total OPEB liability.

F. Net Pension Liability
The District’s beginning net pension liability was $7,772,718 and increased by $761,968 during the year ended

June 30, 2019. The ending net pension liability at June 30, 2019 was $8,534,686. See Note 11 for additional
information regarding the net pension liability.

35



86

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 9 - FUND BALANCES

Fund balances were composed of the following elements at June 30, 2019:

The District is committed to maintaining a prudent level of financial resources to protect against the need to reduce
service levels because of temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted expenditures. The District’s Minimum Fund
Balance Policy requires a Reserve for Economic Uncertainties, consisting of unassigned amounts, equal to no less

Non-spendable
Revolving cash
Stores inventory
Prepaid expenditures

Total non-spendable

Restricted
Educational programs
Capital projects
Debt service
All others

Total restricted

Committed

Other commitments
Total committed
Assigned

Postemployment benefits

Total assigned
Unassigned
Remaining unassigned
Total unassigned
Total

Non-Major Total
Governmental Govemmental

General Fund Building Fund Funds Funds
10,000 $ -3 - % 10,000
= = 9,835 9,835
12,049 - - 12,049
22,049 - 9,835 31,884
355,546 - 115,545 471,091
- 1,585,663 163,459 1,749,122
- - 281,509 281,509
- - 112,725 112,725
355,546 1,585,663 673,238 2,614,447
- - 37,508 37,508
- - 37,508 37,508
211,395 - - 211,395
211,395 - - 211,395
1,308,367 - - 1,308,367
1,308,367 - - 1,308,367
1,897,357 $ 1,585,663 §$ 720,581 $ 4,203,601

than 4 percent of General Fund expenditures and other financing uses.

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB)

A.

Plan Description

The Hamilton Unified School District administers a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan that provides
medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets

the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement 75.

36



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

B. Benefits Provided

The District provides postemployment health care benefits based on the age and the years of service. District-
paid benefits are subject to a cap and paid until age 65.

Employee Group Age for Eligibility | Years for Eligibility
Certificated 55 15
Classified and Confidential Management 55 15
Classified Confidential 50 10
Superintendent 55 5

C. Contributions
The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Hamilton Unified School District are established and may

be amended by the Hamilton Unified School District. For fiscal year 2018-19, the District contributed $65,379 to
the Plan, all of which was used for current premiums.

D. Plan Membership

Membership of the Plan consisted of the following:

Number of

participants
Inactive employees receiving benefits 7
Inactive employees entitled to but not receiving benefits* -
Participating active employees 64
Total number of participants** 71

*Information not provided
**As of the July 1, 2017 valuation date

E. Total OPEB Liability

The Hamilton Unified School District’s total OPEB liability of $1,139,051 was measured as of June 30, 2018 and
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017.

37

87



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

F. Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs

The total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017 using the
following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled
forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019:

Assumptions:

Salary increases 3.00%
Medical cost trend rate 5.00% for 2018 and later years
Employer cap adjustment 0.00%
Age adjustment factor 0.30%
Percent married 50.0%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table for Males or Females,
as appropriate, without projection. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Health
Annuitant Mortality Table for Males or Females, as appropriate, without projection.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on a review of plan experience during
the period July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017.

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20 Bond Index. The actuary assumed contributions would be
sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed thirty years.

G. Changes in Total OPEB Liability

June 30, 2019
Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost $ 59,372
Interest on total OPEB liability 34,889
Difference between expected and actual experience (36,932)
Benefits payments (65,379)
Net change in total OPEB liability (8,050)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,147,101
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 1,139,051
Covered-employee payroll $ 4,907,547

District's total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll 23.2%

38



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 10 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (continued)

H. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Hamilton Unified School District, as well as what the District’s
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.62
percent) or one percentage point higher (4.62 percent) than the current discount rate:

Valuation
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.62%) (3.62%) (4.62%)
Total OPEB liability $ 1,215,859 $ 1,139,051 $ 1,067,840

l. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Hamilton Unified School District, as well as what the District’s
total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point
lower (5.00 percent) or one percentage point higher (7.00 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rate:

Valuation Trend

1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
(4.00%) (5.00%) (6.00%)
Total OPEB liability $ 1,036,493 $ 1,139,051 $ 1,256,872

J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Hamilton Unified School District recognized OPEB expense of $106,367.
At June 30, 2019, the Hamilton Unified School District reported deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows

of Resources
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date $ 95,313
$ 95,313

The $95,313 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resuiting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year
ended June 30, 2020.

39

89



90

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS

Qualified employees are covered under multiple-employer contributory retirement plans maintained by agencies of
the State of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers' Retirement System
(CaiSTRS), and classified employees are members of the California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS).
The District reported its proportionate share of the net pension liabilities, pension expense, deferred outflow of
resources, and deferred inflow of resources for each of the above pians as follows:

Deferred Deferred inflows
Net pension outflows related related to
liability to pensions pensions Pension expense
STRS Pension $ 5,724,627 $ 1,800,510 $ 486,221 $ 708,528
PERS Pension 2,810,059 934,398 3,718 642,446
Total $ 8,534,686 $ 2,734,908 $ 489,939 $ 1,350,974

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS); a cost-sharing multiple
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. The plan
provides retirement and disability benefits and survivor benefits to beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by state statutes, as legislatively amended, within the State Teachers' Retirement Law. CalSTRS
issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. Copies of the CalSTRS annual financial report may be obtained from CalSTRS, 7919
Folsom Blvd., Sacramento, CA 95826.

Benefits Provided
The CalSTRS defined benefit plan has two benefit formulas:

1.

CalSTRS 2% at 60: Members first hired on or before December 31, 2012, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 60 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 60, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. Early retirement options are available at age 55 with five
years of credited service or as early as age 50 with 30 years of credited service. The age factor for retirements
after age 60 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 63 or older. Members who have
30 years or more of credited service receive an additional increase of up to 0.2 percent to the age factor,
known as the career factor. The maximum benefit with the career factor is 2.4 percent of final compensation.

CalSTRS 2% at 62: Members first hired on or after January 1, 2013, to perform service that could be
creditable to CalSTRS. CalSTRS 2% at 62 members are eligible for normal retirement at age 62, with a
minimum of five years of credited service. The normal retirement benefit is equal to 2.0 percent of final
compensation for each year of credited service. An early retirement option is available at age 55. The age
factor for retirement after age 62 increases with each quarter year of age to 2.4 percent at age 65 or older.

40



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Contributions

Active plan CalSTRS 2% at 60 and 2% at 62 members are required to contribute 10.25% and 10.205% of their
salary for fiscat year 2019, respectively, and the District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate.
The actuarial methods and assumptions used for determining the rate are those adopted by CalSTRS Teachers'
Retirement Board. The required employer contribution rate for fiscal year 2019 was 16.28% of annual payrall.
The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by state statute. Contributions to the plan
from the District were $568,939 for the year ended June 30, 2019.

On-Behalf Payments -

The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalSTRS for K-12
education. These payments consist of state general fund contributions of approximately $522,549 to CalSTRS,
which included a supplemental contribution for fiscal year 2019 due to California Senate Bill No. 90.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected
a reduction for State pension support provided to the District. The amount recognized by the District as its
proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related State support, and the total portion of the net pension
liability that was associated with the District were as follows:

District's proportionate share of the

net pension liability 3 5,724,627

State's proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the District 3,277,633
Total $ 9,002,260

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017
and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2018. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the District’s
proportion was 0.006 percent, which did not change from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.

41



92

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued

- JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (continued)
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $708,528. In addition, the District
recognized pension expense and revenue of $111,766 for support provided by the State. At June 30, 2019, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ - $ 220,434
Differences between expected and
actual experience 17,752 83,153
Changes in assumptions 889,305 -
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 324,514 182,634
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 568,939 -
$ 1,800,510 $ 486,221

The $568,939 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources

2020 $ 259,474 $ 17,589
2021 259,474 100,341
2022 259,474 250,709
2023 211,520 102,387
2024 211,522 14,344
2025 30,107 851

$ 1,231,571 $ 486,221

42



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2017, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2018 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Consumer Price Inflation 2.75%
Investment Rate of Return* 7.10%
Wage Inflation 3.50%

* Net of investment expenses, but gross of administrative expenses.

CalSTRS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom
tables are based on MP-2016 series tables adjusted to fit CalSTRS experience.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2010-June 30, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. The best-estimate ranges were
developed using capital market assumptions from CalSTRS general investment consultant (Pension Consulting
Alliance-PCA) as an input to the process. The actuarial investment rate of return assumption was adopted by the
board in February 2017 in conjunction with the most recent experience study. For each future vatuation, CalSTRS
consulting actuary (Milliman) reviews the return assumption for reasonableness based on the most current capital
market assumptions. Best estimates of 20-year geometrically-linked real rates of return and the assumed asset
allocation for each major asset class for the year ended June 30, 2018, are summarized in the following table:

Assumed Asset Long-Term Expected

Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return*
Global Equity 47% 6.30%
Fixed Income 12% 0.30%
Real Estate 13% 5.20%
Private Equity 13% 9.30%
Risk Mitigating Strategies 9% 2.90%
Inflation Sensitive 4% 3.80%
Cash/Liquidity 2% -1.00%

100%

*20-year geometric average

43



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

A. California State Teachers' Retirement System (CalSTRS) (continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10 percent. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates in accordance with the rate increases per AB 1469. Projected inflows from investment
earnings were calculated using the long:term assumed investment rate of return (7.10 percent) and assuming
that contributions, benefit payments, and administrative expense occur midyear. Based on those assumptions,
the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term assumed investment rate of return was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate :

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.10 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.10 percent) or 1-percentage-point
higher (8.10 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.10%) (7.10%) (8.10%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 8,385,909 $ 5,724,627 3 3,518,166

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalSTRS
financial report.

B. California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS)

Plan Description

The District contributes to the School Employer Pool under the California Public Employees' Retirement System
(CalPERS); a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan
administered by CalPERS. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by state statutes, as
legislatively amended, within the Public Employees' Retirement Laws. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento,
CA 95811.

Benefits Provided

The benefits for the defined benefit plan are based on members’ years of service, age, final compensation, and
benefit formula. Benefits are provided for disability, death, and survivors of eligible members or beneficiaries.
Members become fully vested in their retirement benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.

44



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Contributions

Active plan members who entered into the plan prior to January 1, 2013, are required to contribute 7.0% of their
salary. The California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) specifies that new members entering into
the plan on or after January 1, 2013, shall pay the higher of fifty percent of normal costs or 7.0% of their salary.
Additionally, for new members entering the plan on or after January 1, 2013, the employer is prohibited from
paying any of the employee contribution to CalPERS unless the employer payment of the member’s contribution
is specified in an employment agreement or collective bargaining agreement that expires after January 1, 2013.

The District is required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The actuarial methods and assumptions used
for determining the rate are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration. The required employer
contribution rate for fiscal year 2019 was 18.062% of annual payrall. Contributions to the plan from the District
were $273,239 for the year ended June 30, 2019,

On-Behalf Payments

The District was the recipient of on-behalf payments made by the State of California to CalPERS for K-12
education. These payments consisted of state general fund contributions of approximately $95,282 to CalPERS
for fiscal year 2019 due to California Senate Bill No. 90.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $2,810,059 for its proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2017 and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2018. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to
the projected contributions of all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, the
District’s proportion was 0.011 percent, which was an increase of 0.002 percent from its proportion measured as
of June 30, 2017.

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $642,446. At June 30, 2019, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between projected and
actual earnings on plan investments $ 23,049 $ -
Differences between expected and
actual experience 184,217 -
Changes in assumptions 280,572 -
Changes in proportion and differences
between District contributions and
proportionate share of contributions 173,321 3,718
District contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 273,239 -
$ 934,398 $ 3,718

45



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

The $273.239 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Year Ended June 30, of Resources of Resources
2020 $ 362,967 $ 3,718
2021 270,453 -
2022 44325 -
2023 (16,586) -
$ 661,159 $ 3,718

Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability was determined by applying update procedures to an actuarial valuation as of June 30,

2017, and rolling forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2018 using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%
Discount Rate 7.15%
Salary Increases Varies by Entry Age and Service

CalPERS uses custom mortality tables to best fit the patterns of mortality among its members. These custom
tables are derived using CalPERS’ membership data for all funds. The table includes 15 years of mortality
improvements using the Society of Actuaries Scale 90% of scale MP 2016.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block method
in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. In determining the long-term
expected rate of return, both short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected
pension fund cash flows were taken into account. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members
and employers will make their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical
returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound {geometric) returns were calculated over the short-
term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-60 years) using a building block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The
expected rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same
present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The

expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to
account for assumed administrative expenses.

46



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 11 - PENSION PLANS (continued)

B. California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (continued)

The table below reflects long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was calculated
using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These
geometric rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

Assumed Asset Real Return Real
Asset Class Allocation Years 1 -10* Return
Years 11+**
Global Equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Estate 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liguidity 1.0% 0.0% -0.92%
100.0%

*An.expected inflation of 2.00% used for this period.
**An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. A projection of the expected benefit
payments and contributions was performed to determine if assets would run out. The test revealed the assets
would not run out. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability for the Schools Pool. The results
of the crossover testing for the Schools Pool are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained at CalPERS’
website.

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 7.15 percent, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.15 percent) or 1-percentage-point
higher (8.15 percent) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 4,091,312 $ 2,810,059 $ 1,747,077

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial report.

47



98

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A

Grants

The District received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The disbursement
of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the
grant agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims resulting from such
audits could become a liability of the General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of
management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position
of the District at June 30, 2019.

Litigation
The District is involved in various litigation arising from the normal course of business. In the opinion of

management and legal counsel, the disposition of all other litigation pending is not expected to have a material
adverse effect on the overall financial position of the District at June 30, 20189.

NOTE 13 — PARTICIPATION IN JOINT POWERS AUTHORITIES

The District is a member of two joint powers authorities (JPAs). The first is the California’s Valued Trust to provide
health and welfare benefits, and the other is the Golden State Risk Management Authority to provide property and
liability insurance and workers’ compensation insurance. The relationship is such that the JPAs are not component
units of the District for financial reporting purposes.

NOTE 14 - DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

A.

Pension Plans

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the District recognized
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions in the
District-wide financial statements. Further information regarding the deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources can be found at Note 11. At June 30, 2019, total deferred outflows related to pensions was
$2,734,908 and total deferred inflows related to pensions was $489,939.

Other Postemployment Benefits

Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, the District recognized deferred outflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits
and deferred inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits in the District-wide financial
statements. Further information regarding the deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
can be found at Note 10. At June 30, 2019, total deferred outflows related to other postemployment benefits was
$95,313.

48



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, continued
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 15 - CALSTRS EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE

In 2018-19, the District offered an early retirement incentive from the California State Teachers' Retirement System
(CalSTRS) in anticipation of net salary savings of approximately $41,614. Two employees opted into the program.
The District has completed its certification required by Education Code Sections 22714, 22714.5, and 44929 as
summarized below:

Admin Fee,
Present Retiree  Replacemen
Value Plus Salary t Employee Yearsto  Salary and
Type of Service Any and Salary and Cost Benefit
Position Age Credit Interest Benefits Benefits Savings Savings
1 Teacher 67.58 20.21 $ 60691 $ 94894 $ : 1 $ 94,894
2 Superintendent  60.42 20.91 $ 117653 $287634 $ 162570 1 $ 125,064

Savings $ 219,958

Total Costs § (178,344)
Net Savings $ 41,614

49



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

100



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
GENERAL FUND - BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Actual* Variances -
Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  Final to Actual
REVENUES
LCFF sources $ 7548255 § 7,695,895 $ 7,585,746 $ (110,149)
Federal sources 260,002 269,983 312,481 42,498
Other state sources 467,224 513,194 386,893 (126,301)
Other local sources 35,500 35,500 105,703 70,203
Total Revenues 8,310,981 8,514,572 8,390,823 (123,749)
EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries 3,476,900 3,514,169 3,606,836 (92,667)
Classified salaries 1,146,053 1,146,553 1,194,119 (47,566)
Employee benefits 1,893,035 1,893,319 1,894,721 (1,402)
Books and supplies 312,945 509,271 406,435 102,836
Services and other operating expenditures 808,593 872,059 944,941 (72,882)
Capital outlay 236,000 569,030 568,942 88
Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs 565,616 773,732 848,471 (74,739)
Transfers of indirect costs - (7,800) (7,130) (670)
Total Expenditures 8,439,142 9,270,333 9,457,335 (187,002)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures {128,161) (755,761) (1,066,512) (310,751)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 27,972 27,972 377,972 350,000
Transfers out (103,000) - - -
Net Financing Sources (Uses) (75,028) 27972 377,972 350,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (203,189) (727,789) (688,540) 39,249
Fund Balance - Beginning 1,947,083 1,947,083 1,947,083 -
Fund Balance - Ending $ 1,743,894 § 1,219,294 § 1,258,543 §$ 39,249

* The actual amounts reported on this schedule do not agree with the amounts reported on the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance for the following reasons:

e  On-behalf payments of $617,831 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures reported in this
schedule.

e Actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts
on that schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay
Projects and the Special Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund type
definitions promulgated by GASB Statement No. 54.

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

50

101



102

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest on total OPEB liability

Difference between expected and actual experience
Benefits payments

Net change in total OPEB liability

Total OPEB liability - beginning

Total OPEB liability - ending

Covered-employee payroll

District's total OPEB liability as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

See accompanying note to required supplementary information.

51

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

$ 59,372  $ 57,643
34,889 35,569
(36,932) s
(65,379) (163,783)
(8,050) (70,571)

1,147,101 1,217,672

$ 1,139,051 $ 1,147,101

$ 4907547 $ 4,720,386
23.2% 24.3%



A,

103

"uoneuloju; Aejuaws|ddns padinbai o} sjou BuiAuedwoooe asg

"loud JeaA auo pa.Indo0 Jey) pus-Jeak ayl Jo Se pauluLIBjep S1am Jeak [EOSY YOS 10y pajuasald SJUNOWE oy |

%592 %01 %0'0L %569 %0°LL Aunge uoisuad ejoy ay) jo sbejusoiad
e se uolysod jau Asejonply ue|d
% LEL %E'SPL %l 29l %8CLL %lClL llodAed pasanod sy o
obejuaoiad e se Ayjige|| uoisuad
J8u 8y} jo aleys ajeuojjiodoud so1IsIg
199'2e9'2 GlL1'Z56'e $ teLivoe $ L9'€6l'E ¢ z80'/c¢g'e $ lloJAed paianod sjoLIsIq
£8/'6€G'S 019'265'9 $ 68268/} $ 186'08.'8 $ 092'z00% $ |elolL
GL2'S80'C v11'892°C §95'908'C 168'€9z'e €£9°L/TE 1911381Q 8Y3 yum pajeroosse Ayjigel|
uoisuad jau ay) Jo a1eys ajeuojiiodold sa1e1g
BOO'VSY'E 9cL'682'y $ vvZeee'y $ 060'LlSS $ le9'vel's $ Aungey uoisuad
Jau ay} Jo ateys sjeuotuodoud s10141SIg
%9000 %3000 %9000 %9000 %9000 Aungey uosuad jeu ayi Jo uoiodoud souisia
§10Z ‘o aunp 910z ‘og aunr L10Z ‘og dunf 8102 ‘0t aunp 6102 ‘o¢ aunp

6102 ‘0€ INN A3AN3 ¥V3IA IHL HO4
SHLSTVI - ALITIAVIT NOISN3d L3N IHL 40 FHVHS FLVYNOILYOdONd S.LI141SId IHL 40 JT1NA3HOS

L1O141S1a TOOHOS A3I4INN NOLTIWVH



€§

‘uojjewJour Aejuswaiddns palinbal o} 8j0u BuiAuedwoooe aag

~Jod Jeak BUO PBIIND0 JBY} PUS-IBBA SU} JO SE PAUILLISIOP BioM Jeak DSl YIBS Jo) peojuasaid sjunowie ay |

%¥'€8 %¥'6. %6'€L %6°LL %8'0L Aungel uoisuad [ejol auj jo abejuasied
e se uolyisod jau Aselonpi) ue|d
%1801 %0'vEL %E' 9L %Z.1'981 %Z4°10¢ [loJAed palanod sy Jo
abejuaoiad e se Aypgel| uoisuad
19U 8y} Jo aJeys ajeuoljiodoud s101181Q
169'786 $ 9z8'0e0°'L $ Geo'el Ll $ 666'202'L $ $0€'€6E'L $ [lodAed paisnod s1ouIsig
768'v90°'L $ £96'08€'L $ oig'6e8’l $ 829'662'C $ 650'018'C $ Auyqe| uojsuad
19U 8y] 10 aleys ajeuoiliodold sjouisIg
%6000 %6000 %6000 %600°0 %100 Aypgey uoisuad j8u ay} jo uoriodoud s1ouIsIA
SL0Z ‘og dunp 910¢ ‘0g 8unr 2102 ‘og aunp 810z ‘o¢ aunp 6102 ‘0¢ sunr

610Z ‘0€ ANNC A3ANT ¥VIA 3H1 404

SY¥3dIVI - ALIIEVIT NOISNId 13N FHL 40 JYVHS LVNOILYOdO¥Ud S:1O141SId FH1 40 ITNA3IHOS
12141S1d TOOHOS a3ldINN NOLTHAVH

104



= ‘uonewuou; Arejuawsiddns pauinbal 0} ajou Buifuedwoooe aag
SUOIINQIIUOD J[BYSQ-UO SPNJSU| JOU 0P SJUNOLY,
%88'8 %8201 %S85l %Er YL %9291 lloJAed passnod
0 sbejuaoiad e se suonnqguoD
GL1'2s6'e $ ¥ZL'Ip0'e $ LLo'eel'e $ 280'/z¢e'e $ 6.5'v6E'E $ losAed passnod syoulsia
= $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (sseoxs) Asusiolep uonNQLIUOD
(€10'292) (662'22¢€) (€z2'00Y) (860'08Y) (6£6'895) +uonnqL3uod palinbal Ajlenjoe.juod
3yj 0 UoljeJal Ul SUCHNGIIUOD
£1029¢ $ 662'12¢ $ X AN 0} 7 $ 860°08% $ 6£6'895 $ uofngLjuod palinbal Ajjenjoeljuo)
610z ‘og aunp 9102 ‘0¢ aunr 110Z ‘og aunp 8L0Z ‘o¢ aunp 610Z ‘o€ aunp

610Z ‘0€ ANN A3AN3 ¥VIA FHL HOH
SH1STVO - SNOLLNGIMLNOD LOI¥LSIA 40 ITINAIHIS
1O141S1d TOOHIS @3IdINN NOLTINVH

105



o1

-uonjewJour Auejuswalddns palinbal o} sjou BulAuedwoooe aag

SUOIJNGIIIUOD JIBYSG-UO BPNjoUl JOU Op SJUNOWY,

%ES'LL %L8LL %.8°€L %EGGl %90°8 jloJAed pa1sA0d
10 abejusoiad e se suoinNguIU0D
928'0€0'L Ggo'cLL’) $ 6G6'202°L $ ¥0E'€6E' L $ 896'C1G') $ jloJAed paserod s)oulsIg
- - $ E $ - $ - $ (sseox8) Aousidlep uoINgUII0D
(g68°L21) (L2¥'1€1) (025'291) (¥6£'912) (6£2'c22) L,UolNguIuos pasnbal Ajlenjoeluod
8y} 0} uolje|aJ Ul suoiinquiuc)
868'12L LIV'LEL $ 045'291 $ v6e'9LZ $ 6£7'€.2 $ uopNqLiuod painbal Ajjenioenuod

§L0z ‘og sunp

9102 ‘og sunr

210z ‘0g dunf

8L0z ‘o€ sunp

6102 ‘o€ dunf

610Z ‘0€ ANNC A3AN3 ¥VIA IHL YOS
SH3IdTVI - SNOILNGIMLINOD 1O11SIa 40 3TNA3HOS
12141S1d TOOHIS a@31dINN NOLTINVH

106



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

This schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 34 as required supplementary information (RSI) for the General
Fund and for each major special revenue fund that has a legally adopted annual budget. The budgetary comparison
schedule presents both (a) the original and (b) the final appropriated budgets for the reporting period as well as (c)
actual inflows, outflows, and balances, stated on the District’s budgetary basis. A separate column to report the
variance between the final budget and actual amounts is also presented, although not required.

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 75 for all sole and agent employers that provide other
postemployment benefits (OPEB). Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under
which GASB Statement No. 75 was applicable. The schedule presents the sources of change in the total OPEB
liability, and the components of the total OPEB liability and related ratios, including the total OPEB liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll.

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuation for OPEB.

Changes in Assumptions
There were no changes in economic assumptions since the previous valuation for OPEB.

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The
schedule presents the District’s proportion (percentage) of the collective net pension liability, the District’s
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability, the District’'s covered payroll, the District’s
proportionate share (amount) of the collective net pension liability as a percentage of the employer’s covered payroll,
and the pension plan’s fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability.

Changes in Benefit Terms
There were no changes in benefit terms since the previous valuations for CalSTRS and CalPERS.

Changes in Assumptions
There were no changes in economic assumptions since the previous valuations for CalSTRS and CalPERS.

Schedule of District Contributions

This 10-year schedule is required by GASB Statement No. 68 for each cost-sharing pension plan. Until a full 10-year
trend is compiled, the schedule will only show those years under which GASB Statement No. 68 was applicable. The
schedule presents the District's statutorily or contractually required employer contribution, the amount of
contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer
contribution, the difference between the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution and the amount
of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation to the statutorily or contractually required employer
contribution, the District’s covered payroll, and the amount of contributions recognized by the pension plan in relation
to the statutorily or contractually required employer contribution as a percentage of the District’s covered payroll.

56

107



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION, continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 2 - EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District incurred an excess of expenditures over appropriations in individual
major funds presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule by major object code, as follows:

Expenditures and Other Uses

Budget Actual Excess

General Fund
Certificated salaries $ 3,514,169 $ 3,606,836 $ 92,667
Classified salaries $ 1,146,553 $ 1,194,119 § 47 566
Employee benefits $ 1,893,319 §$ 1,894,721 § 1,402
Services and other operating expenditures $ 872,059 $ 944941 $ 72,882

Other outgo
Excluding transfers of indirect costs $ 773,732 §$ 848471 $ 74,739
Transfers of indirect costs $ (7,800) $ (7,130) $ 670

57

108



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

109



110

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CFDA Pass-Through Entity
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Number Identifying Number
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION:
Passed through California Department of Education:
Title |, Part A, Basic Grants Low-Income and Neglected 84.010 14329
Title Il, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction Local Grants 84.367 14341
Title I
Title ill, English Learner Student Program 84.365 14346
Title Hll, Immigrant Education Program B4.365 15146
Subtotal Title 1t
Title IV, Part A
Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 84.424 15396
Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grant Program (SSAE) 84.424 15391
Subtotal Title IV, Part A
Title VI, Part B, Rural & Low Income School Program 84.3588 14356
Adult Education
Adult Education: Adult Basic Education & ESL B84.002A 14508
Adult Education: Adult Secondary Education 84.002 13978
Aduit Education: English Literacy and Civics Education 84.002A 14109
Subtotal Adult Education
Vocational Programs: Voc & Appl Tech Secondary Il C, Sec 131 (Carl Perkins Act) 84.048 14893
Total U. S. Department of Education
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:
Passed through California Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster
School Breakfast Program - Needy 10.553 13526
National School Lunch Program 10.555 13391
Meal Supplements 10.555 .
USDA Commodities 10.555 *
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 13004
Subtotal Child Nutrition Cluster
CACFP Claims - Centers and Family Day Care 10.568 13393
Forest Reserve Funds 10.665 10044
Total U. S. Department of Agriculture
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES:
Passed through California Department of Health Services:
Medi-Cal Administrative Activities 93.778 10060

Total U. S. Department of Health & Human Services
Total Federal Expenditures

* Pass-Through Entity Identifying Number not available or not applicable

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

58

Federal
__Expenditures

$ 185,918
25478

17,998
363
18,361

12,874
30,139
43,013
16,044

7,515
4,400
7315
19,230
6,836
314,880

90,404
239,822
6,017
25,966
11,992
374,201
73,796
2,047
450,044

14,784

14,784
5 Treres



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE (ADA)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

SCHOOL DISTRICT
TK/K through Third
Regular ADA
Fourth through Sixth
Regular ADA
Seventh through Eighth
Regular ADA
Ninth through Twelfth
Regular ADA
TOTAL SCHOOL DISTRICT

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

59

Second
Period Annual
Report Report
Certificate No. Certificate No.
E6B5C587 20BDOE28
184.88 184.55
138.82 138.73
79.75 79.60
284.42 284.91
687.87 687.79

111



112

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2018-19
Minutes Actual Number

Grade Level Requirement Minutes of Days Status

Kindergarten 36,000 58,900 180 Complied
Grade 1 50,400 52,100 180 Complied
Grade 2 50,400 52,300 180 Complied
Grade 3 50,400 52,300 180 Complied
Grade 4 54,000 56,200 180 Complied
Grade 5 54,000 56,200 180 Complied
Grade 6 54,000 62,136 180 Complied
Grade 7 54,000 62,136 180 Complied
Grade 8 54,000 62,136 180 Complied
Grade 9 64,800 65,360 180 Complied
Grade 10 64,800 65,360 180 Complied
Grade 11 64,800 65,360 180 Complied
Grade 12 64,800 65,360 180 Complied

See accompanying note to supplementary information.
60



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL TRENDS AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2020 (Budget) 2019 2018 2017

General Fund - Budgetary Basis**

Revenues And Other Financing Sources $ 8,500,450 $ 8,768,795 $ 7,991,664 $ 7,982,174

Expenditures And Other Financing Uses 8,735,699 9,457,335 8,713,858 8,052,990
Net change in Fund Balance $ (235,249) $ (688,540) $ (722,194) $ (70,816)
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,023,294 §$ 1,258,543 $ 1,947,083 $ 2,669,277
Available Reserves* $ 667,748 $ 1,308,367 $ 1,532,032 § 2,231,952
Available Reserves As A

Percentage Of Outgo 7.64% 13.83% 17.58% 27.72%
Long-term Liabilities $ 12,844,025 $ 13,002,591 § 9,589,121 $ 7,772,316
Average Daily

Attendance At P-2 692 6588 672 669

The General Fund balance has decreased by $1,410,734 over the past two years. The fiscal year 2019-20 budget
projects a decrease of $235,249. For a District this size, the State recommends available reserves of at least 4% of
General Fund expenditures, transfers out, and other uses (total outgo).

The District has incurred operating deficits in each of the past three years and anticipates incurring an operating
deficit during the 2019-20 fiscal year. Total long-term obligations have increased by $5,230,275 over the past two
years.

Average daily attendance has increased by 19 ADA over the past two years. An additional increase of 4 ADA is
anticipated during the 2019-20 fiscal year.

*Available reserves consist of all unassigned fund balance within the General Fund and the Special Reserve Fund for
Other Than Capital Outlay Projects.

**The actual amounts reported in this schedule are for the General Fund only, and do not agree with the amounts
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances because the amounts on that
schedule include the financial activity of the Special Reserve Fund for Other Than Capital Outlay Projects and Special
Reserve Fund for Postemployment Benefits, in accordance with the fund type definitions promulgated by GASB
Statement No. 54. On-behalf payments of $617,831 are not included in the actual revenues and expenditures reported
in this schedule.

See accompanying note to supplementary information.,

61

113



114

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL AND BUDGET REPORT WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

June 30, 2019, annual financial and budget report fund balance

Adjustments and reclassifications:
Increase (decrease) in total fund balances:
Fund balance transfer (GASB 54)
Net adjustments and reclassifications
June 30, 2019, audited financial statement fund balance

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

62

Special Reserve

Fund for Other  Special Reserve
Than Capital Fund for
General Outlay Postemployment
Fund Projects Benefits
$ 1,258,543 $ 427419 $ 211,395
638,814 (427,419) (211,395)
638,814 (427,419) (211,395)
$ 1,897,357 § -3 2




€9

‘uofjeuisopu; Aiejuswalddns o) sjou Buifuedwoooe sag

LEC'69L $ 116182 $ BSY'E9L $ 805°/¢ 080'05 ) $ 8Ll $ 9eSThl §  souejeg pund pue sanjiqer] [ejo]
185022 605°1.82 65+'€9L 805'/¢€ 095'Z2l 6512 98c'C)L saouejeg puny [ejo)
805°2€ E 3 80G'/€ - - = pajIWWoY
8€2'€/9 605182 BSH'E9L E TN 6512 98E'EL} psjoLsay
GER'S o - - Geg'6 - - sjgepuads-uoN
SIONVIVE ANNS
059'8% z - g 0252 8/6'L) 051'62 saiylger [ejo)
6v9'LE - = = - 9660 £69°02 spuny Jayjo o} ang
L00Z) $ ¢ $ - $ - 0252 $ 286 $ /6v'8 $ SaNligel| pan1doy
s3aLniavin
LEZ'69/ $ 115182 $ 65Y'E9l $ 805'/¢ 080'0EL $ JELPL $ 9eS'ZhL $ S3assy |ejoL
GE8'6 E - s G£8'6 S - Kiojuanu) sai01g
LpL'9 = . - 0Ls 1€Z'9 - SpUN} Jayjo woyy sng
0¥l SiP'E 0598 vll €18, ¥20's 99/'vZ 3|qeA933) SN0y
£5Z'809 $ 9e0'8/2 $ 600'/¢L $ vBE'LE 291'sy $ ces'e $ 02211 $ SJUBWISSAUI PUE YSED
s13ssv
spung pun4 uonjdwapay pung pung punj elisjajes pung pun4
|ejusIUIBADD) g }saJ9ju| puog  sanIjioe [eyden ajueus)ulely juswdojanag uoljeanp3 }Inpy
Jofepy-uoN pausgaq PIIYD

6102 ‘o€ annr
133HS IONVIVE ONINISWOD
L1O141S1d TOOHIS a3I4INN NOLTINVH

115



¥9

‘uonewoul Arejuswalddns o} sjou BuiAuedwoooe 29g

LBS'0EL $ 606’182 $ BSYESL S 80c'lE $ 095¢Ch § BGLE $ 9BE'ELL g Buipu3 - asuejeg pung
BEE'ESS 886'cS1 9er'ell vZS'EE veo'zat eE'T G.6'SH Bujuuibag - aduejeg puny
[ ] LEG'SZL £20'09 ¥86'E (y9v'8E) {ece) il JONVIVE ANNA NI IDONVHO 13N
¥5Z'GlL 9zZ'EvL - - - = (¢16'22) (sasn) seoinos Buroueuld JoN
2162 » v - S = (¢i6'12) o sJ9jsuel |
9ze'erl 9ce'erl - o = = = $92.UN0S J8IO
(sasn) sa2unog Buisueuld 18Y10
886'LS (502°21) £20°09 ¥BE'E (F9¥'6€) ezl £BE'SY sainjipuadxg JanQ
sanuaaay Jo (Aouaioyaq) S539%3
€12'600'L 626'L6 = L50'6Y 995'8¥5 9GH'6EL S02'08L sainyipuadxy ejol
628'61 628'61 o * = - - J13yjo pue jsala|
00122 00L'ZL = ¥ - . > |edioulid
991485 180
150'6% = - 1G0'6Y = - - S9OIAISS JUEld
0€L'L - - - = = OEL’L uoijeJjsiuiwpe [esauab Jayio Iy
UOljRJISIUIWPE [BJBUE)
586'Yy = - = = - GB6'Y saojases idnd Jeyio Iy
996'8YS - - g 996'8¥S . 2 S9JIAl8S pOO4
5901Al8S [1dNd
205'10L = = = = - 205'101 uopjelisiuiupe 8jls j0oyds
8/6'0 - - - - - 8/6'9 ABojouyos) pue ‘eipaw 'Aleiql| [BuO[1oN.su|
S90IAIOS PalejaI-IoNoNIISU|
L90'661 = = - = 9GH'6EL 509'65 uononJisu]
waun)
SIUNLIGNIdXT
102'190°L veT vl £20'09 L ¥0'ES 201’605 £2Z'6E} 8985'6¢¢ SaNUIASY [ej0]
€erell 809G/ £20'09 L¥ 8CEeE £5¢ 0LL'y $99.N0S |BJ0] 13410
1GG'29¢ (¥8e°L) . N 11072 0/6'BE} 881'20C $321N0S 818 JBYIO
12¢'19Y - o r 166'Lby ¥ oce’sl $30UN0S |BJSpa]
000'€S - $ - $ 000'€S $ - 8 - = $ $92JN0S 4407
SINNIAIY
spung pung uonduapay pung pung pund eyajajed pung pundy
|ejuswuiaA0s g }saseluj puog  Ssiy|Ioed [ended asuruajulEl juawdoBaag uoyjeanp3 ynNpy
1ole|y-uoN palaiaqg PIiUD

6102 ‘0€ ANNr A3AN3 ¥VIA IHL ¥O4

SIONVIVE ANN4 NI STIONVHD ANV ‘STUNLIANIdX3 ‘SINNIATY 40 INIFWILVIS ONINIGNOD

12141810 TOOHOS a3I4INN NOLTINVH

116



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
JUNE 30, 2019

The Hamilton Unified School District was established on July 1, 2009 upon the unification of Hamilton High School
District and Hamilton Elementary School District. The boundaries of the former districts changed in accordance with
the approved plan of unification. The District is located in Glenn County and is currently operating one high school,
one elementary school, two community day schools, one continuation high school, one preschool, and an adult

education program.

GOVERNING BOARD

Member Office Term Expires
Gabriel Leal President December 2020
Hubert “Wendall” Lower Clerk December 2020
Rod Boone Member December 2020
Ray Odom Member December 2022
Genaro Reyes Member December 2022

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATORS

Charles Tracy
Superintendent

Diane Holliman
Chief Business Official

See accompanying note to supplementary information.

65

117



118

HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2019

NOTE 1 - PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the Federal grant activity of the District and
is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial
statements.

The District has not elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate.

Schedule of Average Daily Attendance (ADA)

Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the District. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of state
funds are made to school districts. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students at various
grade levels and in different programs.

Schedule of Instructional Time

This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the District and whether the District
complied with the provisions of Education Code Sections 46200 through 46208. During the year ended June 30,
2019, the District participated in the Longer Day incentive funding program. As of June 30, 2019, the District had met
its target funding.

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis

This schedule discloses the District's financial trends by displaying past years' data along with current year budget
information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the District's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

Reconciliation of Annual Financial and Budget Report with Audited Financial Statements
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance of all funds reported on the Annual
Financial and Budget Report Unaudited Actuals to the audited financial statements.

Combining Statements — Non-Major Funds
These statements provide information on the District’s non-major funds.

Local Education Agency Organization Structure
This schedule provides information about the District's boundaries and schools operated, members of the governing
board, and members of the administration.

66



OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORTS

119



120

Certified Public Accountants serving
o K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Hamilton Unified School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 20189,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Hamilton Unified School District’s
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 16, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hamilton Unified School District’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant

_deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we

consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

348 Olive Street 0: 618-270-8222
San Diego, CA F: 619-260-9085
92103 christywhite.com

67



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hamilton Unified School District's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accardance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Choistsy, White ) The.

San Diego, California
December 16, 2019

68

121



122

Certified Public Accountants serving
d K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Hamilton Unified School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Hamilton Unified School
District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. Hamilton Unified School District's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hamilton Unified School District's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards
and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hamilton
Unified School District's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hamilton Unified School District's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program
In our opinion, Hamilton Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year ended June 30, 2019.

348 Olive Street 0: 619-270-8222
San Diego, CA F:619-260-9085
92103 christywhite.com

69



Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Hamilton Unified School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered Hamilton Unified School District’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance
for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hamilton Unified School District's
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal contral over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CM WM) Lhc.

San Diego, California
December 16, 2019

70

123



124

Certified Public Accountants serving
L K-12 School Districts and Charter
Schools throughout California

REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Independent Auditors’ Report

Governing Board
Hamilton Unified School District
Hamilton City, California

Report on State Compliance

We have audited Hamilton Unified School District’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 2018-2019 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting,
prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810, that could have a direct and material effect on
each of Hamilton Unified School District’s state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, as identified below.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hamilton Unified Schoal District's state programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United
States; and the 2018-2019 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance
Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 19810. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hamilton Unified Schoot District's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance with the requirements referred
to above. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hamilton Unified School District's compliance
with those requirements.

Opinion on State Compliance
In our opinion, Hamilton Unified School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that are applicable to the state programs noted in the table below for the year ended
June 30, 20189.

348 Olive Street 0: 619-270-8222
San Biego, CA F: 619-260-8085
92103 christywhite.com

71



Procedures Performed

In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine Hamilton
Unified School District's compliance with the state laws and regulations applicable to the following items:

PROCEDURES
PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
Attendance Yes
Teacher Certification and Misassignments Yes
Kindergarten Continuance Yes
Independent Study Not Applicable
Continuation Education No
Instructional Time Yes
Instructional Materials Yes
Ratios of Administrative Employees to Teachers Yes
Classroom Teacher Salaries Yes
Early Retirement Incentive Yes
Gann Limit Calculation Yes
School Accountability Report Card Yes
Juvenile Court Schools Not Applicable
Middle or Early College High Schools Not Applicable
K-3 Grade Span Adjustment Yes
Transportation Maintenance of Effort Yes
Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction Not Applicable
Comprehensive School Safety Plan Yes
District of Choice Not Applicable
California Clean Energy Jobs Act Yes

(Continued on the next page)

72

125



Procedures Performed (continued)

PROCEDURES
PROGRAM NAME PERFORMED
After/Before School Education and Safety Program Not Applicable
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds Yes
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts Yes
Local Control and Accountability Plan Yes

Independent Study-Course Based

Attendance; for charter schools

Mode of Instruction; for charter schools

Nonclassroom-Based Instruction/Independent Study;
for charter schools

Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom-Based
Instruction; for charter schools

Annual Instructional Minutes — Classroom Based; for
charter schools

Charter School Facility Grant Program

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable
Not Applicable

We did not perform testing for Continuation Education because it was not material for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Chniaty, White ) Tre.

San Diego, California
December 16, 2019

73

126



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND
QUESTIONED COSTS

127



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? No
FEDERAL AWARDS
Internal control over major program:
Material weakness(es) identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported
Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with Uniform Guidance 2 CFR 200.516(a)? No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
10.553, 10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster
Doliar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? No
STATE AWARDS
Internal control over state programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None Reported
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for state programs: Unmodified
74

128



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30000 Internal Control

There were no financial statement findings for the year ended June 30, 2019.

75

129



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
50000 Federal Compliance

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

76

130



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATE AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

FIVE DIGIT CODE AB 3627 FINDING TYPE
10000 Attendance
40000 State Compliance
42000 Charter School Facilities Programs
43000 Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000 Local Controt Accountability Plan
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 School Accountability Report Card

There were no state award findings or questioned costs for the year ended June 30, 2019.

77

131



8.

‘8102 ‘0¢ aunr papua ieaf ay} 1oj s}s0d pauonsanb Jo sbBujpuiy ou aism aiayj

610Z ‘0€ ANNr A3IAN3 ¥VIA IHL HO4
SONIANI4 LIaNV ¥O0ldd 40 3TNAIHIS AMVINIANS
12141810 TOOHIS d3idINN NOLTIAVH

132



1 ) Glenn County Office of Education
LEN L NTY Educational Services
OFFICE of EDUCATION 676 E. Walker Street, Orland, CA 95963
Tracey Quarne, Superintendent (530) 865-1267 x 2107 ¢ fax (530) 865-1282
December 12, 2019

Dear Dr. Powell and Hamilton Unified Governing Board members:

Based on a review of student group performance on the 2019 CA Dashboard state indicators, Hamilton
Unified School District is eligible for Differentiated Assistance. The state indicators of Academic
Performance and Conditions and Climate (Suspension) for Students with Disabilities are indicated as
needing improvement.

Under California’s Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), County Offices of Education, the California
Collaborative for Educational Excellence, and the California Department of Education have specific
responsibilities within the Statewide System of Support to assist local educational agencies. Along with
staff from the State Board of Education, we have been working to ensure that we have a consistent
approach and that our efforts are responsive to locally identified neads.

The starting point will be talking with your district leadership team and stakeholders about the
Dashboard data and other local data, identified strengths and challenges and what may be the cause of
these challenges. Further, responding with specific actions related to challenges in your system, and
consideration of ways to measure the effectiveness of changes within a continuous improvement
process will be key to addressing performance issues brought to light by the Dashboard. Working
alongside your district, county offices are prepared to facilitate these conversations. County Offices will
use tools and strategies from improvement science to support your district. The California Collaborative
for Educational Excellence is positioned to work directly with county offices to serve school districts as
needed.

The focus will be on helping districts build internal capacity so that you can work with your own
communities to develop and implement improvement strategies with guidance and support. For change
to be sustainable, it must be developed and directed by the people within the districts who will be doing
the hard work of continuous improvement.

The Glenn County Office of Education will work with you to identify underlying causes, possible
solutions, helpful resources or expertise, and methods for measuring the effectiveness of possible
solutions.

e There is no requirement to create a new improvement plan nor will the state dictate a specific
set of interventions or establish top-down directives for improvement.

® You can leverage the Local Control and Accountability Plan process to engage local educators
and communities and strengthen/change your LCAP through the annual update cycle.

e The assistance does not need to be limited only to the student group(s) and indicators that led
to identification. Rather, assistance can and should focus on your actual needs, regardless of the
reasons for your eligibility.

Curriculum & Instructional Services » Library/Media ¢ SPARK After School Program s Youth Development » Career Technieal Education

Glenn County Office of Education is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer

133



e The assistance is intended to help you identify your needs and to access expertise or resources
to help you address them. While there is urgency to begin this work, there are no quick fixes for
developing capacity; such efforts require fong-term commitment so that improvement can be
sustained over time.

We appreciate that you may have many more detailed questions about what to expect. Please feel free
to contact Shirley Diaz, Assistant Superintendent Educational Services who will be leading the
Differentiated Assistance process.

Sincerely,

/Qz;/%

Tracey J. Quarne
Glenn County Superintendent of Schools

134



sustainable c.

County Superirﬁeﬂdem
delivers DA letter to
LEA Supt and Board

GCOE team schedules
initial - consultation with
LEA created
Leadership Team

i

| GCOCE team meets with
LEA Leadership Team
to frame DA process.
Review data, progroms
and practices, LCAP

goals and progress
\_‘_/

|

December

January

= Guidirng Frinciples
® Foster systemic collaboration to improve student outcomes
€ Buld o calture of reflective inguiry thoot (eods +o

T~ e Exhibit 0- growth mindset and improvement hobits of mind
T throwh trampacency, emparty, and humble ingary :

ammnmra e T,
ot - i L%
-: -‘/_--_‘_-__-H"‘\-\‘_h

GCCE supports LEA next steps:
* Connect LEA with assistance
providers i needed

* Iden+i£y resources and
assistance

in coun+y/region/9+a+ewide

* Connect LEA with similar
districts and schools with like

needs
*

GCOE submits
letter of strengths and
weaknesses to LEA

g e
1

Data Andlysis of Underlying
Causes

* Review results of surveys

v/\ * Agree upon Findings For
— o per and system
Additional Data Gathered str and weaknesses
GCOE team and/or LEA perform * Review effective programs
€ | additional surveys as needed such and proctices aliﬂned to
= | os identified needs
i.l‘ * Stakeholder surveys/imer‘views * Determine next 9+epg
g |+ Systems Analysis
2 | * Process Mapping
* Root Cause Analy;is
e ————————— - =
| Questions? Contoet ! (f
| Shirley Liaz - Educationod Serviees | N 7
i stioclglenncazory fi oot

aung - few

oJel - Aiendnad

135



136



HAMILTON UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
HAMILTON HIGH SCHOOL SITE EXPANSION-PERMITTING STATUS
BOARD DISCUSSION ITEM

JANUARY 22,2020

CURRENT SITE PURCHASE STATUS & TIMELINE-(Defer to Supt. & Legal Counsel)
CDE SITE PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS
DEPARTMENT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CONTROL (NV5)

e Preliminary Environmental Assessment Scope; DTSC Comments returned to District-District &
Consultant have made requested amendments. No apparent cost impacts for study.

* Onsite sampling completed by 11/15/2019; lab analysis now being completed.

¢ Draft PEA now being completed; due to be submitted to DTSC approximately 1/30/2020.

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (PLACEWORKS)

e Construction Data requests completed; will be incorporated in final Project Description and
Air Quality sections.

e Onsite studies & sampling completed 11/13/2019.

e Consultant now drafting land use, noise, bio, cultural & air quality sections of report.

¢ Now analyzing Consultant’s Additional Cost Proposal

TITLE 5 REPORTS {PLACEWORKS)-

® Pipeline Safety Study: Research & Report Complete. SUMMARY-No mitigation measures
required.

* Railway Safety Study: Research & Report Complete. SUMMARY: No special risks or
mitigation required.

e Dam Inundation Study: Research & Report Complete. SUMMARY: Dam Inundation: “The
school site is within the inundation zones of Black Butte Dam and Shasta Dam. It is highly
unlikely that either the Black Butte Dam or Shasta Dam would experience a catastrophic failure,
even in the case of a maximum credible earthquake. As flood depths would not reach the school
site for 7 hours at the earliest, there would be adequate time for the safe evacuation of students
and staff at Hamilton High School in the unlikely event of a dam failure. However, because the
school site is located within the inundation zones for two dams, it is recommended that the
District coordinate with the Glenn County Sheriff/Office of Emergency Services to ensure that
they are notified via the SEMS and CodeRED in the case of an imminent dam failure or other
natural disaster.”

137



138

EDUCATIONAL SPECIFICATIONS (iep2)

e Initial Scoping Meeting with Superintendent 7/2/2019; Sup’t. now putting together Focus
Group membership lists (i.e. Site Faculty, Parent Groups, District Support Staff, etc.). First
meeting to be held in early February 2020.

Geological Hazards Studies

e Now soliciting proposals for studies to meet the requirements of the California Department of
Education (CDE), School Facilities Planning Division form 4.01, Division of the State Architect
(DSA), the California Geological Survey (CGS) Note 48, and the 2016 California Building Code
(CBC). Results expected the end of January 2020.



